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SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

DIRECTORS REPORT

To the Members,

Your Cireciors are pleased to present the 35" Annual Report along with Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2016

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The highlights of tha inancial results are as under:

Rs.
Year ended Year anded
31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Total Income 34,23.28. 714 30,38,78,487
Profit bafore exceptional and Extra- 16,16,33,994 14,48,87,961
Ordinary items and tax
Lass:
Pravisian for diminution in valua of 14,51.63,460 31,69,23,2322
investments

Provision for Non- Perfarming Assets
Frofitiloss) before tax

75,67,069 {2,08,77,653)
89,01,465 (15,33,57,608)

Provision for Taxation -  Current 4,60.00,000 4,10,00,000
Profiti(loss} aftar Tax (3,70,98,535) (19,43,57,608)
Balance brought forward from previous 169,91,22,589 189,34 80,197
year

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 166,20,24,054  169,91,22,589
DIVIDEND

In view of losses, your Directors do nol recommend any dividend for the year under review,

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The total incgme of the Company during the year was Rs, 3438.29 lakhs as against Rs. 3038.78
lakhs in the previous year. The profit before tax during the year was Rs. 88.01 lakhs as against loss
of Rs. 1533.58 lakhs in the previous year. The loss after tax was Rs. 370 99 fakhs as against Rs.
1943.58 lakhs in the previcus year.



SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Your Company has one subsidiary namely Crishpark Vincom Limited and one associate rnamely
Kushagra Infragtruclure Private Limited. There has been no material change in the nature of
business of subsidiary companies

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 128 (3} of the Companies Act. 2013, a statemeant cartamng
sahent features of the financial statemeants of the subsidiades and associate companies is attached
to the financial statements of the Company.

Further. pursuanl to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act. 2013, the financial
statements of the Company, consolidated financial statements along with relevant documents ang
separate audited accounts in respect of subsidiaries are available on the website of the Company
www . sudhaapparels com

CONSQLIDATED FINANCGIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Accounting Standard AS-21 on Consolidated
Financial Statements read with Accounting Standard AS-23 an Accounting far Investments in
Associates, the Audited Consoldated Financial Statements are provided in the Annual Report.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

3mt Savita Jindal, Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Arnual General
Meeling and being eligible. offers herself for reappointment. & brief profile has been provided in the
notice of the Annual General Meeting. ltem seeking your approval for her appointment 1s included
in the Netice convening the Annual General Maeting.

All Independent Directors of the Company have given declaration that they meet the crileria of
independence as laid down under Sectian 149 (8) of the Gompanies Act. 2013 and Regulation 25 of
the SEBI (Lisling Obligations and Disclesure Requirements) Requlations, 2015

During the year. the Non-executive Directors of the Compary had no pecuniary relationship or
transactions with the Company.

Shri H.K. Khanna resigned as Chief Financial Officer wef 31% August, 2015 The Board has
appeintzd Shn Arup Kumar Mitra as Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f. 1% September.
2015,

BOARD MEETINGS
Curing the year, § {3ix} Board meetings were held, The details of which are given in the Corporate
Governance Report, which farms part of this report.

BOARD EVALUATION

The Board of Direclors has carried out an Annual perfermance evaluation of its own, Board
Committee and Individual Directors pursuanl ta the provisions of the Cormpanies Act. 2013 and the
Corporate Governance requirements as prescribed under SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclasure
Requirements} Regulations, 2015

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board. after seeking inputs fram all the
Directors on the basis of the criteria such az Board composition and structures, effectiveness of
Ecard processes, information and functioring etc.

The performance of the Commitiees was evailuated by the Board after seeking inputs from the
Committes members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of Committees,
effectiveness af Cormmittea meetings.
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The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the
ndividual Directors on the basis of the criteria such as contnibution of the Indivisual Directar Lo the
Board and Comrmitteg meetings.

Also in a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of non-independent Direclors,
performance of the Board as & wholg was evaluated. The Company has ng designated Chairman.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Company’s policy on Diractors' appaintment and ramuneration including critena for determining
gualifications. posilive attnbutes, indapendence of Directors and other matters prowvidad in Section
178(3) of the Companies Act. 2013 has been disclosed in the corporate governance report. which
forms part of the Directors’ Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT
Adequate measures have been adopted by the Company to anticipate, plan and mitigate the

spectrum of risks it faces. The Coumpany’s business operations are exposed to financial risks
including Liquidity Risk etc.

The Board of the Company has approved the Risk management Policy of the Company and
autharized the Audit Commitiee to implement and monitor the risk management plan for the
Company and also identify and mitigate the various element of risks, if any, which in tha opinion of
the Board may threaten the existence of the Company.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Ax per the provisions of Section 134(5){a} of the Companies Agt, 2013 the Company has in place
adequate internal financial conlrols with reference to financial stalements. Audit Commitiee
periodically reviews the adequacy of internal financial cantrols.

Duning the year, such controls were tested and no reportable matenal weaknesses were cbserved.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required under Section 134{5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors state:

i that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year endad 31" March, 2016, the
applicabla accounting standards had been followed and there are no material departures,

(i) that the accounting policies selected and applied are consistent and the judgments and
gstimates made are reasonable and prudent so as to give a frue and fair view of the state of
affars of the Company at the end of financial year and of the profit of the Company for that
period,;

i} that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Campanies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

{ivi  that the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2015 have been prepared cn a
going cancem basis.

{v}  that the internal financial controls laid down by the Board and being followed by the
Company are adeguate and were cperating effectively.

fw) that the proper systems, devised by Directors t¢ ensure campliance wath the provisions of all
applicatle laws, were adequate and cperating effectively.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As required under Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the extract of the Annual Retum in
prescribad form MGT-2 is annexed with this Report.

ALDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Commitiee of the Company consisls of Shn R.K. Banthia, Chawman, Shn Sandaep Shah
and Shri Mangat Ram Garg as its other members. The terms of reference are in confarmity with the
raquirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SE8I (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015
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VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has adopted a Whistle blower policy and established the necessary vigil macharmsm
for Directars and employaes to repon concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud
or viclation of the Company's Code of conduct. The said policy has been disclosed on the
Company's website undar the web hnk
http:fwww sudhaapparels. comfSudhaWhistleBlowerPolicy . pdf

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Corporate Social Responsibibty Committee has formulated and recommended to the Board. a
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy {CSR Palicy) indicating the activities to be undertaken by the
Company, monitoring the implementalion of the framework of the CSR Pelicy and recommending
the amount to be spent on CSR aclivilies, which has besn approved by the Board. The CSR Palicy
may ba accessed on the website of the Company
http fwww sudhaapparels.com/CSR% 20 alicy%20-Sudha. pdf

The Annual Report on TSR activities in the format prescribed in the Companies {Corporate Social
Kesponsibility Policy} Rules, 201415 appended as Annexure to this Report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Frovisions of Section 186 are not applicable to any acquisitron made by & nen-banking financial
Company registered under Chapler IILE of lhe Raserve Bank of India Act, 1834 and whase principal
business is acquisition of securites {i.e. investment and landing activities). The Company has not
given any guarantee or provided any security.

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMEMNTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
All contracts/ arrangements/transactions entered into by the Company with the related paries
dunng the year wers in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's length basis.

All related party transactions are periodically placed before the Audit Commitiee ang Board for
review and approval.

Duning the year, the Company had not entered into any contract! arrangementftransaction wilh the
related parties which could be considered material in accerdance with the palicy of the Coempany an
matenality of related party tranzactians.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to Regulation 27 of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, Corporate Governance Report along wilh Auditors' Certificate regarding
compliance of conditions of Corporate Govermnanca has been annexed as part of this Annua! Report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
A delailed analysis of your Company's perfarmance is discussed in the Management Discussion
and Analysis Report which forms part ¢f this Annual Repart.

INFCRMATION UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
{(PREVENTION, PROHIBITIDN AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has constituted an Internal Complaint Commitlee under Section 4 of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prahibilion and Redressal) Act. 2013, During the
year no complaint was filed before the said committes.

AUDITORS

Mis. Khandelwal Prajapah and Co., Chartered Agcountants. the retiiing Auditors, hold office unhil
cenclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Slatutory Auditors have confirmed their
ehgibility and willingness 1o accept the office on re-appointment.

The observations of the Auditors are explained wherever necessary in tha apprognate Notes on
Accounts The Auditors” Report does nol contain any qualificaton, reservalion or adverse remark.

)



SECRETARIAL AUDIT

The Beard has appointed M/s Hemant Singh and Asscciates, Practsing Company Secretaries, to
conduct Secretarial Audit for the financial year ended 31% Warch, 2016, The Secretanal Audit
Report for the year ended 31% March. 2016 is annexed herewith as an annaxure to this Report. The
Secretanal Audit Repont does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

FIXED DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted any deposits from Public and a5 sush. no amount an account of
principal ar interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of the Balance Sheet.

GONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

In view of the business activities of the Company. the information relating to conservation of Eenergy.
technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo. as required under Sectian 134(3m)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8{3) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not
applicable to the Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Particulars of employzes. as reguired under Section 157(12) of the Companiss Act, 2013 (Act} read
with Rules 5(1). 5(2) and 5{3} of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Manageral
Personnel} Rules, 2014, forms part of this report. However, in pursuance of Section 135(1) of the
Act, this réport is baing sent to the shareholders of the Company excluding the said infarmation. The
said infarmabion s available for inspaction by the members of the Company at the reqistered cffice
of Ihe Company during working hours up to the date of the Annual General Meeting. Any membear
interestad i abtaining such information may write to the Company Secretary a1 the corporate office
of the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENTS

Mo material changes and commilments, effecting the financial posion of the Company have
occurred after the end of the financial year ended 31™ March, 2015 and (il! the date of this report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board expresses its grateful apprecialion of the assistance and co-operation received from
Central and State Governments, Banks and Sharsholders.

Your Directors wish o place on racord ther deep sense of appreciation for the devoted contrnibution
made by the employees and associales at all levels.

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Gurgacn Savita Jindal Mangat Ram Garg
Dated: 10" August, 2016 Dwector  VWhole Time Director



Annual Report an Corporate Social Responsibili CER

[Pursuant to clause {0} of sub-section {3} of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companes (Corporate
Sowal Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

1 A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, Including overview of prejects or programmes
proposed to be undertaken and a referance tc the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or
programs

The Board of Drectors, on recommendation of the Corporate Social Responsibility Comimittes framed &

Corperate Sooial  Responsibility  Poliey  which s posted  an the Company's websie

waew sudhaapparels com. The Company proposes to adopt projects or programmes under gne o mare
of the activities as prescribed under Scheduie Wil of the Compames Acl, 2013, as recommended from
time b hme.

2. The Compositior of the CSR Committee. The Company has a CER Commitles of Directers comprising
of Shri Mangat Ram Garg, Charman of the Commiitee and Shri R.K Banthia and Shri Sandeep Shah as
its other members

3. Average net profit of the Company for Jast three financial years - Hs 1207 28 Lakhs

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure {two per cont of the amount a% i item 3 abave] — Rs. 24,15 Lakhs
5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year

(a) Total ampunt to be spent for the Anancial yaar - Rs.24 15 Lakhs

(] Amount unspent, if any — Rs. 14,15 Lakhs

(e) Manner n which the amount spent during the financial year s detaled below.

6. Reasons for not spending two percent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or
any part theraof on CSR.

The Company considers various proposals for carrying out CHR actiaties 1o ensure that the contributions
made by the Company ara for deserving causes and are properly utihized, which has taken more time than
estimated and hence the required amount was not spent dunng the year. The Company was slll evaluating
various proposals at the year end.

7 A responsibility slatement of the CSR Committee that the implermentation and monitonng of CER Pohgy, is
in compliance wilh CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

\Wg hereby declare that implementation and manitaring of the CSR policy are in compliance with CS5R
abyectives and policy of the Company.

Savita Jindal " Mangat Ram Garg

Director « Chairman CSR Committes
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SECRETARFIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31" March, 2016
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appeintment and Remuneration of Managerial Parsonnel) Rules, 2014]

Tn,

The Membiers,

SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED
25, Sorat Bose Road, Sukh Sagar,
Flar No. BA, Kolkata-700020

We have conducted the Secrerarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED
(hercinafter called the "Company™). Secrotarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the infermation provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives, during the conduct of
secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on 31% March 2016 complied with the statutory
pravisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reparting
made herginafter:

We have cxamined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by SUDHA APPARELS LIMITEIDD {"the Company”) for the financial yvear
ended on 319 March, 2016 according to the provisions of;

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) and the Rules made thereunder:

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Ack, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made there
under;

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder:

{tv}  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and repulations made
thereunder to the extent of Fareign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct [nvestment and
External Commercial Berrowings;

fv] The fullowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securitics and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'}:-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takegvers) Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Prohibition of [nsider Trading)
Regulations, 1992 and The Securities and Exchange Board of [ndia [Prohibition of
Insider Trading] Regulations, 2015;

“q



c. The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Reyuirements) Regulations, 2009 [Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period);

i. The Securities and Exchapge Board of [ndia (Share Based Employec Benefits)
Regulations, 2014 - (Not applicable te the Company during the Audit Period);

¢. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008- (Mot applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transler Agenls) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client with respect to issue of securities:

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009 - {(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Periad);

h. The Securities and Exchange Beard of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998 [Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Peried]; and

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 (applicable to the Company with effect from
01.12.2015).

[vi)  Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:

a. Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential
Norms {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007 and Non-Banking Financial (Non-Depaosit
Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms [(Reseive Bank) Directions,
2015 and other relevant guidelines and circulars issued by Reserve Bank of India
from time to time and periodic reporting's done by the Company.

We have alse examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i} Secretarial Standards (ssued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stack Exchange namely the
CSE Limited;

During the period under review the Company has compiied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Repulations, Guidelines, Standards, ete. mentioned above.

We further repoit that

As informed by the Company, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and [ndependent Directors,
There was no change in the composition of the Board of Directors during the period under
review,



Adegquate notice is given to all Directors o schedule the Board mectings. Agenda and detailed
notes an agenda were sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and ghraining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningtul
participation at the meeting.

The decisions of the Board were carried cut through unanimous votes, no dissenting views of
any Director was recorded in the minutes maintained by the Company.

We further report that there are adeguate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines,

We further report that during the audit periad there has not been any such activity having a

major hearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the zbove referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines etc.

For Hemant Singh and Associates
Company Secretarias

Date; 10" August, 2016
Place: Delni {Hemant Kumar Singh)
{Partner)
FCS 6033
C.P. Ho. 8370

H



SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED
Form AOC-1

[Pursuant to first prowisa 10 sub-section (33 of Sechon 129 read with Rule 3 ot the Cormpanes {Accounts)
Rules, 2014]

Statement containing saliant features of the financial statement of Subsidlaries/Associates
Companlas! Joint Ventures

Fart A Subsidiaries:

" 5r No. | Parbculars ' + Name of Subsidianes: )
_ _ | CRISHPARK VINCOM LIMITES
P | Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned 31.03.2016
3 Reporting currency and Exchange rala ag on the Indian Rupee
last date of the relavanl inancial year in case of
foreign subsidiares . o
E Share Capital 1,30,02,600
Fa Resarves and Surplus (23.91,64,065)
5. Total Assets 93,78,22.821
. Total Ligtinlies ) 93.78.22 821
7 Investments ' 90.86.96,583
“R. Turnover ' 74,27,186
Q. Prafit befare taxation (22.51,35.152}
1{1. Provision for taxation ! 0
11.  Profit after taxation ' (22 61,35.152)
12 Proposed DCividend Nil
‘13 % of sharehoiding 65.88

Notes:
1. Names of the subsidiaries which are yét to commence opsrations — Nit
2  Mames of subsidiaries which have been liguidatad ar sold during the year - Nil

Fart "B" Associates and Joint Ventures

8r. No. | Particulars Name of Assotiate
KUSHAGRA INFRASTRUCTURE
FRIVATE LIMITED
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date _ 31 03.2016
> Shares of AssaciatedJaint Yentures held by the 0%
Company on the year end
- Mo, of Egquity Shares 11.95.000
-Armaunt of Investment in Assoiatasdoint : 3.60,59.450
Wenture . _
- Extent of Holding (%) &0 00
3, . Description of how there 1s significant influence  Sharehalding exceeding 20% of
. paid-up share capital
R Reascn why the associatedoint venturg is not . Agsooiale has been consolidated
. eonsalidated _ . |
5. Mel-worth attributable o Sharehalding as per 2.19.85. 458
latest audited Balance Sheat o |
' &, Profiv(loss) for Ihe year
' Y i Considarad in consaldation (7.A7.327)
i i. Mot Considered in consalidation | Nl

1. Names of the assaciales or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations — Nil
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liguidated or sold dunng the year —

Mil )
b,



SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED
Form No. MGT-8
Extract of Annual Return

As on the financial year ended on 31% March, 2016
[Pursuant to secton 92(3} of the Companies Act. 2013 and rule 12{1) of the

Companes {Management and Administraticn} Rules, 2014]
. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETANS

CIN

L1F299WE1881FLCO3I33IN

Regstration Dale

37 February, 1981

i) Name of the Company SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED
) Category/Sub-Category of the Company Fubhe ]
) Address of the Registered Office and contact 25, Sarat Bose Road. Sukh Sagar,
detailz Flat No.8A, 8th Floor, Kolkata-700 020
) ¥West Bengal
i) . W¥hether listed company Yes . )
wii] Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar | Alankit Assignment Limited

and Share Transfer Agent, if any

Alankil Heights,

1EM 3, Jhandewalan Exbansion,
New Delh — 110085

Phone: 011.23541234 42541234
Fax 0111- 42541987

e-mail: fa@@alankit.com

i PRINCIFAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business actvities contnbuting 10 % of mare of the total Iurncwer of the Company shall be

stated: -
5l Mo | Name and Descripion of main products NIC Code  of %% to total tumover of the
i services the  Products COmpany
sarvice

1 commercial Loan and investment 85823 7 #154 o
2 Leasing of self-owned non-residential builkding 70104~~~ 37.56

lll. PARTICULARS GOF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES.-
{5l | NAME AMD ADDRESS OF - CINIGLN 'HOLDING! | % of | Appli-

No ! THE COMPANY® : i SUBSIDIAR shar . cable

1

LYY ' es Sechon

P ASSOCIATE | held

|
r
|
| 2

Limited

Cnshpark Vingem Limited  USTIOPWE1004PLC0B5200  Subsidiary  65.88% 2(a7)(iiy

Kushagra Infrastructure Prvate U29120WB2005F TC 102950 Associate 50.00% 2{f]
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.

i] Category-wise Share Holding

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN [Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of

Total Equity)

i Calegory of Mg of Shares held at the Mo. of Shares held at the end of T
Shareholders i begmning of the year | the year {As on 317 March, 2016) ﬁ“g ;
| {As on 1% Apri, 2015) o |
f &
bhe
e . o ear
Demat Phys | Tolal : % of Dem | Phy B N EE
ical Total al . sical Taolal
. Shara E Shar
! | § : | 25
! PECMOTERS ' lll | i
{1)Indian 1 I’ |
iaJ Indiarn/HUF 251543 175292 425835 5871 425335 - 426835 5571 0.0
"By Ceniral Govt. - ; . . - S
'¢) State Govt{s) | . ] - ] - » . .
d) Bodies Corporate 37416 70000107416 1478 107418 { 107418 1474 0.00
‘&) Hank/Fl : 171" ] 5 ] ] ;
[ ) Any Other - 1 ] Eln ] - - ]
Suty - Talal 288959 245290534251 7349 534251 - 534251 73.48 .00
(2) Foreign N !
“a} NRI - Individuals i i ST - - " .
b} Other Individuals . ; - ] ] - 1 1
&) Bodias Corporates i i - ; - - N .
_'d} BankiFl ] i ] . N b ] 4
. e} Any Other - - - . 4 - - o
| - IS
Sub - Total - - ] ] 4 - A ]
Total shareholding of |2668959| 245292534254 TJ.JI% 534251 - 534251i T3.45 a.00
| Promotars (A) = i .
RlalL riA)Z) o B :
Demat] Physic | Total %of Demat | Physical :  Total % of
al Total Tatal '
Share Shar
S R " 3 es
B. Public Stharenalding
Instituliens o ! ) ) ]
‘@) Mutual Funds - - ] . - ; . 1 7]
by Bank/Fl - . . - . - 4 -

¢} Geniral Govemment

1

f4



'd} State Government ] J - N : ] ]

'8} Venture Capital | - . N T : :i : 1

. Funds . . . - :
fi  Insurance 1 - - - - - - 1

| e — PR e L S — . - -— -—} . ; i

|9) Flis - 4 d - - - - .

‘ hy ~Foreign Ventures - N . - _ -

S ' |

i} Others [Specify) " . - - - - - -

|Hﬂnvln5|i[uti|:ans | B !

| a) Bodies Carporales -| 26600 119161144761 1991 25600 119161 144761 19 81] 300

) Indan . N B - ; . :
b) Individuals {1 4B0OY 4B00D 660 - 4800 48000 &6 0.00

sharehoiders
holding nominal !
share capital upto |
Rs. 1 lakh
Individuals - | - 1 - 1 4 - )
sharcholders i
halding nominal |
share capital in ;
excess of Rs. 1 lakh ;
¢y Others (Specify) | - - . 4 i T - ]

Euh-tntal {B){2): 25600 167161192761 25,51; 256000 167161 192761 28.51 0.00

¥ Toual Public 25600) 167181192761 2851 256001 167161 192761 26.51 0.00

: shareholding :

"C. Shares held by ] ; ] - - - !
Custedian for GDRe - -] |
and ADR= _ L ’
Grand Total (A+B+C) (314559 412453727012 100.00 585851 167161 ?271112‘ 0000

{mShareholding of Promoters

'8l Share- " [ Bharcholding at the | Shareholding at the end of the
M hotders Name beginmng ol the year year (As on 31" March, 20186)

o. {As on 17 April, 2018) '
Mo of | % of total ! %of Mo of | % oftotat  %of % change |
Shares | Sharesof Shares | Shares i Shares of Shares in share
the ; Pledge | the Pledged / | holding
compary | :ﬂ"lmmh " company  ercumbe | during
ared to red ko the year
shares ! shares

1 D.P. Jincal B9500) 961 000 63900 861 000 0.00

2 [D.P. Jindai (HUF) 25150 48% 000 35150 483 .00 G.00

'3 [Saket Jindal 700000 963 0000 70000 963 0.00 0.00

| & [Savita Jindal 106662 1467 000 106662 1467 0.0G 0.00

"5 [Raghay Jindal 145123 19.06] 000 145123 1906 D O 0.00

16 [indal Global Finance| 107416 1477 000 107418 1477 D00 0.00)

: and Investmeant Lid.

|| Totai ' 534261 7349 000 534251 T34 D00 0.00

fs



(i)

Change in Promoters' Shareholding

5r Name Shareholding at Date  fincreasel Reason  [Shareholding at the end |
Mo, - the beginning of | Decrease of the year (As on 31*
the year . n : March, 2016)
{As on 1% April, 2015) shareholdi |
: ng | !
No of B of total ' o !Ha of % af total
sharas nares of i shares sharas of
] i &
ompany ! cmpany
| NC CHANGE DURING THE YEAR T
fivl Sharahoiding Partarn of top terr Sharehoiders fother than Direefars Provafers anel
Holders of GDRs and ADRS):
s ) Sharéhﬁi&fﬁg at Increasa/Decreass Cumulatve
. Ma. the beginning of dunng the year Sharehglding at the
: the year - end of the yaar
5 {As on 17 ANl [As on 31" March,
! 2015) _ 2016) i
' i For Each of the No.of | %oftotal | No. of Reason No. % of total
Top 10 share - ghares of | share of shares of
Shareholdars 5 Lhe § shar the
company Bs carmpany
At the begqinning
| af the year ) I
1 Pushpanjali 70,000 8,63 e Nil 70,000 9583
Investrade Pvt '
Ltd. |
" GVN Fuels 36,000 4.95) 0 Ml 36,000 4 55
Lo alued 1 . .
. A 3 (- . - -
3 Flakt Dealcommn 35,761 4,92 v Ni‘ 35, 751 4892
: Lid. : -
H Gautam Fin- 3.0000 0.4 R B Wil 3,000 041
; Invesl Pyt Lid, : .
i Om Pal Rappwt ¢ 850y 012 B30T Transfar 0 0.00)
_ _ N TR b Fii R
5 Dharambir Singh BSG 0.12 0 i 850 012
7 Shiv Kumar 0 0.00 850  Purchase 850! 013
Sharma 051172015 ;
A B.F. Roy 800 0.11 0 Nil 800 g1
; !
9 Sher Bahadur 200 a0 8000  Transfer o 0.00
. P oRMIR0E :
10 | Salya Prakash BOD R a0 Nil 800 .11
Goyal ' : :
11 | Pawan Kumar RO R 0 Ni A00 011
Werma |
12| Ajay Joshi A00 011 ﬂ| N 50O 011

{6
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fw) Sherehoiding of Directors and Key Managerigl Parsonnal.

=l " Bhargholding at W Incréase/Dacrease Cumulativa
- No, _the beginming of during the year Sharehalding at the
! ' the year end of the year
i . 01.04.2015 , ' 31.03.2018 :
Nao of % of i No of Reason | No. af % of
| share lotal share . share total '
5 share -4 % shares
5 of | of  the
the © Compan
COmp ¥
any ;
i
1 Smt. Savita 106662 14 67 o il 106662/ 14 &7
Jingal =Drector ! |
2| Sha R.K Bantha q 0.00 u[ NIl o 0.00
- Director I i |
3 Shei Sandeep o pod | Nil o .00
Shah = Director |
= Shri Mangat Rarm 0 .00 Niq 0 0.00
Garg -Chrachor : |
6 | ShriH.K Khanna® TR olog i " I YT
- CFQ (KMPY ,
7 | Shri Arup Kumar o 0.00 o TNl Ty T Tond
Mitra™- -
CFO{KMP)
8 Shri Rajesh 0 0.00 0 Nil o 0.0
 Gupta-CS
"KMPY
* raasad as CFO we f. 31.08.2015
= Appomnted CFO w.af 1.09.2015
V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including Interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
i Secured Loans Unsecured Ceposits Total
' axcluding deposits| Loans Indebtedness
Indebtedness at thi beginning of
the financial year (1*' April, 2018)
i) Principal Amounl { 19,57,92,601 0 19,57,92,891
|ii} Interest dua but not paid f_ - q o i) 0
’iii] Interest accrued but notdue [ 0 nl e d
Total {i+ii+lii) T d 19,5792 681 g T 15,57.92.691
Change in Indebtadness during T
the financial year i
- |

|7



Addition L o0 s@3z886y D 2932853
Red_t_l_c.tin_r]_ Ci: _d ~ ) N
NetChange [ O 36328963 % 3,03.28.963
!_ih_li_ﬁbt;dnﬂﬂ at the end of the o
' financial year {31"" March, 2016)
i) Principal Amount | D 235121854 o 235121654
:iij Imterast due but naot paid 4] o o 0
ﬁ] Interest aconued but not due Y T o o o
FE{ai (il N} | ) 23.5121.554[ 0

Vi

1

REMUNERATION OF NRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONEL

235121 .55-_4|

A Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-lime Director andfor Manager:

Particulars of Remunaration

Mr Mangat Ram
Garg. WTD (Rs.)

L
1

L.

A 4 m———

Gross salary

-w—r—

-

: Total
| Amount (Rs.)

{(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
sechon 1701} of the Incoma-tax Act,
1961

967 488

9.67.485

{b} Value of perquisites w's 17(2) income-tax
Act, 1981

neame- tax Act, 15961

P———— e L p== LR

' Stock Option

Sweat Equily

1 Commission
| - az % of profit
- othars, specify .

Others. please specify

i I

8. Remunaration 1o other Direcrors:

&l
g

~ | Particutars of Remuneration

Total (A}

E',E?,-IBE;I

.67 488

Name of Directors

Tatal
Arnaount

Shri R. K,
Banthia

Shri Sandaap
* Bhah

3. Independsant Direclors
- Fee for attending board commitiee
meetings
- Commuission
- Olhers, please specify

NIL

NIL

NIL

Total (1)

NIL

NIL]

NI

[ &



| 4, Other Non-Executive
Diractors - i .
* Fee [or attending boand commities ;
meetings J ] .
S AZOMMISson . ] )
. i Qihers, pease specify _
Total (<) ML NIL NI
Total (B)= (1 +2] ) - i 1
Total Managerlal NIL l‘-'lll_ir ) MIL
: Remuneration ; :
.77 T Overall Ceiling as per the Act a i
. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN
MO/MANAGERWTD {fAmount in Rz}
Bl Farticulars of Key Managerial Personnel
nao. Remuneration
1. - CEQ hir, Mr. Hemanl ~ Mr Arup | Tolal
; Fajesh K.umar Kumar
Gupla, Khanna, CFC Mitra,
C3 {April, 201510, CFS ,
Aogust 2015} (Saptemb -
er, 1510
. - March 16}
Gross salany M_A.
(a) Salary as per provisions | 813604 603950 143052 1560696
contained in section 17(1)
of the [ncome-tax Act, L
' ib) Value of perquisites + 3.000 . 3000
u/s :
{¢} Profits in lied of salary underf T - ] ]
sechon 17(3} Income-lax
At 1961
2 Stock Oplion 1 J - 4 N
3 Sweat Equity - - - - -
4. Commigsion -+ i - i R
- as % of profit
i - others, specify... ; Lo
s, Others, please specify - - - - -
| Tatal MLA. 1 8,13,694 5,06550 143082 1553694
Wil. PEMNALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES
Type Seclionof |Brief  [Datails of Penalty Aulherity  Appeal made. if
the D escriptic punishment! {ROINCLTY any ( give
i Companies o mpounding Court} datniln)
Act Fans imposed -
ity -
un_i_s:h_r!'_n?nt
Campounding NIL
THER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
nalky
unishment
umpnundlng

—
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SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED
CORPORATE GDVERNANCE REPORT

Sound Corporate Governance is essenlial {0 enhance 1he shareholders’ trust and value. Your
Company conducts its affairs with the highest levels of integrity. wilh proper authorizations,
accountability. disclosure and transparency. The Company strongly believes in maintaining a simple
and fransparent corparate siructure driven selely by business needs Shareholders' interaests are on
utmost priority while protecling the interest of other stakeholders. cusiomers, suppliers and its
employees and the management is only a trustee to carry out the aclivilies in a truthful and fruitiul
Manmner.

Securities and Exchange Board of India {SEBI} has notified SEB! {Listing Obligations and
Dhisclosure Raquiraments) Hegulations, 2015 on Septamber 2, 2015 replacing the earier liskng
agreemeant (w.ef December 1. 2015} with an aim to consolidate and streamline the provisions of
earlier listing agreements for different segments of the Capital market.

The Company has executed fresh Listing Agreement with the CSE Ud. pursuant to SEEBI {Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requiraments) Regulations, 20135,

The Company is in compliance with the requirements as stipulated under Clause 49 of the Lisling
Agreements and Regulation 17 to 27 read with Schedule V and clauses (b} to (i) of sub-regulation
{2) of Regulation 48 of SEBI {Listing Obhgations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
with regard to corporate governance,

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Compositicn

The Company's policy 8 to have appropriale mix of Execulive and Non-Executive/
independent Directors including ong wemen Director on tha Board. The Company has ona
Executive Director who 1s also a prompter of the Company. The number gf Non-Executive
Directors (NEDs) exceeds 50% of the total number of Diractors. None of the Directors on the
Board is @ Member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more than & Committiees
{as specified under SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremants) Regulations,
2015, across all companies in which they are Directors. The Directors have made necessary
disclosures regarding their Committee positions.

All Independent Directors have confirmed that they meel ihe criteria as mentionad undar
Section 148 of the Companies Acl, 2013 and Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing Obligations ang
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Board Functioning and Procedurae

Cluring the year ended 31* March, 2016, the Board of Directors met (6) six times and the gap
between two meetings did not exceed 120 days. The Board meetings were held an 15" April,
2015, 20 May, 2015, 10 August, 2015, 14™ August, 2015, 5™ November, 2015, and
1¥ February, 2016. The Board periodically reviews the compliance report of all laws applicable
lo the Company. The names and categanes of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at
Board meelings dunng the year and at the last Annual General Mesting and also the number
of Directorships held by them in other companies as on 31* March, 2016 are given balow:

Allandance Mo, of olhe Directorships  smd  Carmerithes
) Zhares Memberships! Chaimnanships hedd 5
Diectars | CA99Y  © “now | Board | LastAGM | Direclor- | Commitee | Commies
. Meating ships | Mamber-ahips Chawman-ships
Emt  Sawaa | Nen- 106,602 ¥ Mg 1 - -
Jindal Exacutre '
Shn MA. | Expoative _ L] s 4 . | _
Garg R
Shre R.K | Ingependent . g Yes & -
 Banthia .
%hn Sendeep | Ingdapandent - & Nao i 3
, Shah i R R




Naote:

1. Only Audit and Stakehelder's Relationship Committees are considered
2. Excludes directorship in Foreign Companies.

3. No Directors are relative with cther directors.

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
The Company's Independent Dirgctors meet at least once in every financial year without the
presence of Executive Directors or management personnel, imar alia, to discuss:

- the performance of Non Independent Directors and Board of Directors as a whole.

ihe petdormmance of the Chaimman of the Company, taking into account the views of the
Executive and Non-Executive Dire¢lors.

lhe quality, content and himelines of flow of information between the management and the
Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively perform its duties.

During the year under review, the Independent Direclars met on 1¥ February, 2015, All the
Indepandent Directors were presant at tha meeting.

Familiarisatlion Programme

The Directors are provided with necessary documents/brochures, reports and internal
policies to enable them 1o familiarize with the Cempany's procedures and practices. Periodic
presentations ara made at the Board and Board Committee meetings on business and
perfformance updates of the Company. Detailed presantalions on the Company's business
segments ware made at the separate meeting of the Independent Directars

The details of familiarization programmes for Independent Directors are posted on the
Company's website and can be accessed at
http: / fwww.sudhaapparels. com/ prograrmone. podl

Z. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The terms of refarence of the Audit Committee are as per guidelines set cut in the Regulation 18
of SEBI (Listing Oiligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 read with Saction
177 of the Companies Act, 2013, The Audit Commiltea provides directions to the audit functions
and monitors the quality of internal and statutory audil

The responsibilities of the Audit Committae include overseeing the financial reporting process, o
ensure fairmess, sufficiency and credibility of financial statements, review findings of internal
auditors relating to various functions, recommendation of appointment and removal of statutory
auditors, internal auditors and cost auditors and fixation of their remuneration; review of the
guartarly and annual financial statements before submission to the Board With particular
referance to matters required to be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be
included in the Board's Report in terms of clause (&) of Sub-section 3 of Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013, review of adequacy and compliance of internal control systerns and the
intemal audit function; review of compliance with laws, inspection of records and audit reports
and reports of statutory auditors; review of findings of intemal investigations; review of slatement
of significant related party lransactions, review of management letters/letter of internal control,
weaknesses issued by statutory auditors, discussion an the scope of audit with external auditors
and examination of reasons for substantial defauits. if any in the payment to sharshoklers;
review the functioning of the Vyhistle Blower mechanism etc.

£l



COMPOSITION

The Audit Committee of the Company as on 31* March, 2016, comprised of three Directars
consisting of one Executive Direcior and twn Independent Mon-executive Directors, Al
members of the Committee possess knowledge of Corporate finance. Accounts and Company
Law. The Chairman of the Committeé is an Independent Non-Executive Director. The Company
Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit Commuittee.

Minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are noted by the Board of Directors at the subsequent
Board meeting.

During the year under review 4 Audit Committee meetings were held on 26th May, 2015.
10th August, 2015, 5th November, 2015 and 1st February, 2016 and the gap between two
meetings did not exceed 120 days. The compaosition, names of the members, chairperson, and
particulars of the meestings and attendance of the members during the year are as follows:

Mambers Category HNo. of mestings
L attended
Shn R.K. Banthia Chairman 4
Shri M.R. Garg Member 4
Shri Sangdeep Shah Mambar - 4
INTERNAL AUDIT

The Company has appointed Internal Auditors to review the intemnal control systems of the
Company and to report thereon. The Audit Committee reviews the reports of the Internal
Auditors periodically.

3. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has canstituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee (MRC) and the ferms of
reference of the NRC are as par guidelines set out in Regulation 18 of SEBI {Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 read with Section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013

The said Committee has been entrusted to formulate the criteria for determining qualification,
positive attributes and independance of a Director and recommeand to ihe Board a policy relating
to remuneration for the Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees, formulation of
criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board, devising a policy on Board
diversily, identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed
in senigr management N accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend 1o the Board
their appointment and removal ete.

The Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee as on 31st March, 2016, comprised of three
Non-Executive Directors, The Chairman of the Commitiee is an Independent Nen-Executive
Director. Durin%the year under review meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Comemittee

was held on 157 Apnl, 2015
Mame of the Members Designation Ho. of Mestings attended
Shri_R.K. Banlhia , Chairman 1
Shri Sandeep Shah | Member o
Smt. Savita Jindal . Member i s

2



Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Rermuneration Policy of the Company s designed lo attract. molivate, improve produchivity
and retain manpower, by ¢reating & congenial work environment encouraging inibalives.
personal growth and team work. and inculeating & snse of belanging and involvemenl. besides
offering appropriate remunerahon packages. The policy reflects the Company's abjeclives for
good corporate governance as well as sustaned long-term value creation for shareholders. This
Remuneration Policy applies to Directors. senior management including its Key Managerial
Persennel (KMP) and other employees at regular intarval

The Commitiee shall advise the process to carry out evaluation of performance of every
Director. KMP and Senior Management Personnel and other employsas at regular interval.

As per Ihe Palicy followed by the Company. the Non-Executive Directors are paid remuneration
in the form of sitting fees for attending Board and Committes meetings as fixad by the Board of
Directors from time to tme subject to stalutory provisions. Presently sitting fee is Rs. 2,500 per
Board meeting and Audit Committee meeting. However, the Directors have waived Lheir
entillament 1o receive sitling fees.

Remuneration of Whole Time Director reflecls the overall remuneralion philosophy and guiding
principles of the Company. When congidering the appointment and rémuneration of ¥hole Time
Director. dug consideration is given to pay and employment conditions in the industry, marit and
seniority of the person and the paying capacity of the Company.

The Company's Remunsration Policy is guided by a reward framework and set of principles and
objectives as more fully and particularly envisaged under Section 178 of the Companies A,
2013 inter alia prnciples pertaining to determining qualifications, positive attributes, integrity and
independence atc.

Remuneration package of Whole Time Director is designed subject to the limits laid down under
the Companies Act, 2013 to remunerate him fairly and responsibly. The Whole Time Directer's
remuneration comprises of salary, perquisiles and retirement beneafits as per Rules of the
Company.

The Wheole Time Director is entitled 1o custornary non-monetary benefits such as
accommaodation . leave travel, communication facilities, etc.

Appointment of KMPs and Senior Management and cessation of their services are subject to the
approval of the NRC and the Board of Directors. Remunerabon of KMP and other senior
personnel is gecided by the Whele-time Director broadly based on the Femuneralion Palicy.

The remunération of other employees is fixed from time 10 tme as per the guiding principles
oullined above and considaring industry standards and cost of living. In addition to basic salary
they are also provided perquisites and retirement benefits as per schemes of the Company and
statutory requirements, where applicable. Policy of motivation/reward payments are applicable
to this calegory of persannel as in the case of those in the management cadre.

This Remuneration Policy shall continue to guide all future employment of Directors, Company's
Senior Management including Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.

Any departure from the policy can be undaraken only with the approval of the Board of
Diractors.

Directors’ Remuneration

Rernunaration paid to the Directors during the financial year ended 31st March, 2016 are as
Lnoer:

—
o
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fa) The Detals of remureration paid to Whale-time Directar;
{Amount in Rs.}

Mame Salary Ferquisiles and Total
ather Benefits

Shri Mangat Ram Garg 9.67 488 Ml $.67,488

{b] The Non- Executive Directors are entitied to be paid by way of silting fees for meetings
of the Board of Directors and Audit Committee. During the year ended 31% March, 2015
no remuneration was paid to Non-Executive Directors in view of them having waved
their entitlement to receive the sitting fee.

Apart from being entitled to Direclors’ remuneration by way of silting fee for atlending
meetings of the Board and Audit Committee, none of the Non- Executive Directors had

ary pecdniary ralationship or transactions with the Company during the year ended
Jist March, 2016

4, CORPORATE S0CIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Your Directors have constiuled the Corporate Social Responsibility Commitiee in
reference to the regquirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act. 2013

Thia constitulion of the Corporate Social Respensibility Committee is as under:-

Members Designation
Shri Mangat Ram Garg Chairman
Shri R.K. Banthia o Member

Shri Sandeep Shah Member

The said Committee has been entrustad with the respensibility of formuiating and
recormmending to the Board, a Corporate Social Eesponsitulity Palicy (CSR Folicy)
indicating the activities to be underlaken by the Company, monilaring ihe implementation

of tha framewark of the CSR Policy and recommending the amount to be spant on CER
aclivities.

During the year under review, the said Committee met on 29™ May, 2015. All members
wera present in the meeling.

5. STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Company has constituted Stakehclders' Relationship Committee under the
Chairmanship of a Non-Executive Director of the Company. The Commitiee meets
periodically, to approve inter-alia, transferffransmission of shares, issue of duplicate
share cerfificates and reviews the stalus of investors’ grievances and redressal
mechanism and recommends measures to improve the leval of investor services.
Details of shares fransfersfransmissions approved by the Committee are placed at the
Board meetings fram time to time.

COMPOSITION

The constitution of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee as on 31* March, 2016
was as under-

Name of the Membars Dosignation i
Smil Savita Jingda! . Chairperson
Shri Mangat Ram Garg . Member
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Compliance Officer
The Board has designated Company Secretary as Compliance Officer of the Company.

Details eof Shareholders’ Complaintas received and replied to the
satisfaction of Shareholders

Number of Shareholders compiainis received -[ ]

uring the period 01.04.2015 to 31.03.2018 S Nil
Numbar of complaints not solved to the '
satisfaction of shareholders : Mil

Number of pendirg complaints as on 31 03.2016
hich were sclved later an.

L NI
DESIGNATED EMAIL ID FCR INVESTORS

The Company has designated the following e-mail D axclusively for redressal of
investor grievance i.e. secretarial@sudhaapparels com

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
The Company does not have any material non-listad Indian subsidiary Company.

The Company moniters performance of subsidiary coempanies by the following means:-
-Financial statements of subsidiary companies ara reviawet by the Audit Committae.
-Minutes of Board meetings of subsidiary companigs are placed before the Board
meetings of the Company regularly.

The Company has adopted & Folicy in line with the requirements of the Listing
Regulations. The objective of this policy is to lay down criteria for identfication and
dealing with material subsidiaries and to formulate a governance framework for
subsidiaries of the Company. The policy on Material Subsidiary s available on the
wabsite of the Company under the web link
hitp:thaww sudhaapparels com/Material Subsgidiary pdf

6. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
(I} Delails of the last three Annual General Meetings:

[

. Cate Loation of the Meeting Time
Finangial
yoar

Registered Office of the Company at

2012-13 | 25092013 | 51" et Bosa Road, Sukh Sagar, ¢ | O-o0AM.
Flat No. 84, 8" Floor, Kolkata- 700 020 |
Regislered Office of the Company at i

2013-14 | 26.09.2014 2/5, Sarat Bose Raad, Sukh Sagar, : 10.30AM.
Flat No. 84, 8™ Floor, Kolkata- 700 020 ]
Regislered Office of the Company at

201415 1 30.09.2015 2/, Sarat Bose Road, Sukh Sagar, 11.30AM.

Flat No. BA, B” Floor, Kolkata- 700 020 -

() Special resolutions passed in the previous three Annual General Meetings:
a) Inthe AGM held on 25" September, 2013 No Spaecial resolution was passed:
b} In the AGM held on 20" September. 2014 . No Special resolulion was passed:
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¢) Inthe AGM held on 30th September. 2015 ; Approval of related party transactions
with Sigma Infrastructure Private Limited
fiip No special resclution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot.

7. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Tne Company’s financial results are communicated to C5E Limited with whom the
Company has listing arrangement. as soon as they are approved and taken on record by
the Board of Directors of the Company. Therealer the results are narmally published i
The Echo of India and Arthik Lipi. The Financial Resulis are also available on lhe

Campany's website hitp. fwww.sudhagpparels.com.
8. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

(a) Annual General Meeting:
Dats and Time: 30" September, 2016 at 1130 A M.
venue: Registered Office of the Company at 2/5, Sarat Bose Road. Kolkata — 700020
{b] Financial Year: 1* April. 2015 to 31* March, 2018
(c) Dividend Paymant Date: N A
(dy Listing an stock Exchange

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited, 7.
Lyons Range, Kolkata- 700 001 (West Bengal) and Listing Fee for the year 2016-17 has
been duly paid.

{2} Stock Code

Scrip 1D: SUDHA APPARELS
Scrip Code: 100249405
NSDL/ CDSL —ISIN INE207F01012

(f  Market Price Data

There was no trading of shares on CSE during the pericd from 15t April, 2013 to 31st
March, 2016.

ig] Perfarmance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE sensex,
CRISIL Index etc.

Nol Applicable as the Company is lisled on CSE only.

(¥ In case securities are suspended from trading, the directors shall explain the
reason thereof:

In spite of submission of all information to C3E Limited, and enquiring from them the
reasons for suspension of trading in ils secunties the Company has nol received any reply
ir the maltar.

{il Registrar and Transfer Agent

Alankit Assignment Limited

Alankit Heights,

1EM3, Jhandewalan Extension,

WNew Delhi — 110055

Phone: 011-235441234, 42541234

Fax. 011- 42541967, e-mail: fa@alankit.com
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{i Share Transfer System:

Share transfer requests received in phy=sical form are registered within 15 days from the
date of receipt and demat requests are normally confirmed within the prescribed time from
the date of receipt

(k) Distribution of sharehalding as on 31st March, 2016

Mo of Mo, of % of share- 5 Mo, of Shares : % of
Equity Share- holders held Sharehalging
Shares hald | holders )
Lipto S000 G2 A4 43 51000 T2
SO0 10 5 5HS - 106911 14.70
S000 ) _ _ _
s0001 ta 3 4,11 LR 28.E7
0000 . ) _
19001 and 3 4.11 350201 4541
Above ,
i Total 3 73 10000 127012 100.00

Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2016:

9
Category ) e c:’j; e ‘ Shar:hzflding I
hl-;-‘mm olers 534251 ‘ 73 43 !
Privata Bodies Curpor.ate 144761 : 19 -
Indian Public - . 48000 G &0 -
Geandg Total T raro1z 100.00
{1} Dematerialization of shares

77 .01% of tolal paid-up equity shares of the Company were in dematerialized farm as on 31
March, 2016.

(m) Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Bonds, conversion
date and likely impact on equity:

There is no outstanding GDRs/ADRS or convenible Bonds etc

{n} Commuodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activitias
There is no commodity, exchange nsk and hedging activities during the year.

{Q) Plant Locations: NA.
(=} Address for correspondance:

Shareholders' correspondence should be addressed to the Registrar and Transfer Agent
at the following address:

Alankit Assignment Limitad

Alarkit Heights,

1E/13, Jhandewalan Extension

MNew Delhi — 110055

Frone: 011-23541234, 42541234

Fax 011- 42541967 e-mail: nadalankit.com

Shareholders holding shares 0 demateriaized form should address all their
carrespondence 1o their respective Depository Participants

A



9, OTHER DISCLOSURES

a) Related Party Transactions

There have been related pary transactions as reflected in notes to the accounts bul
they are not in conflict wilh the interest of the Company. All transactions have been
approved by the Audit Committes and all the transactions entered into by the Company
with the related parties during the financial year were on the arm's length basis.

The Board has approved a policy on materiality of Related Party Transactions which has
besn  uploaded on ihe wabsite of the Company at the following link
kttp: Asudhaapparels comfSudhaRPTPolicy pdf

b) Details on Non Compliance

There were no penalties or strictures imposed on the Company by the Stock
Exchanges, SEBI, gr any other statutory authonties on any matter related to the capital
markets during the last 3 years.

¢} Vigil Mechanism/Whistla Blowar Policy

The Company has adopted a Whistle blower policy and has established the necessary
vigil mechanism as defined under Regulation 22 of SEBI| (Listing Obligations ang
Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 for Directors and employees to report
concerns about unathical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or viglation of the
Company's code of conduct. No person has been denied access to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee. The said policy has been disclosed on the Company’s website under
ihe weab hnk hilp /fsudhaapparels.com/SudhawhislleBlowerPolicy pdf,

d} Detail of compliance with mandatory reguirements and Adoption of Non-
mandatory requirementsa

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Schedule V of SEBI
(Listing Obhgations and Disclosure Requraments) Regulations, 2015 However, the
Company has also complied wilh following non-mandatory requirements of Regulation
27(1) read with Part E of Schedule Il of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

A. Shareholdar Righta

Financial positions of the company are posted on the wabsite of the Company.
8. Modified opinion{s) in audit report

Tha Financial Statements of the Company are ungualified..
C. Reporting of Internal auditor

Internal Audii Reparts are directly reported to audit commitiee.

CODE OF CONDLCT

The Board of Directors has adopted the Code of Conduct and Ethics for Direclors and Sanior
Managemenl personnél. The Code has alse been posled on the Company's website
http: fhwww sudhsapparals com,

The Code has been circulated to all members of the Board and senior management personnel and
the compliance with the Code of Conduct and Ethics is affimed by them annually.

A declaralion signed by the Whole-time Qirector of the Company is given below:

This is to certify that, all Board members and Senior Management personne! hawe affirmad
compliance with ihe Code of Conduct for Directars and Senior Management for the financial year
ended 31* March 20186,

Mangat Ram Garg
Date: 10" August, 2016 Whaole Time Direclor
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AUDITORS® CERTIFICATE ON CORPCRATE GOVERNANCE

Ta the Members of
Sudha Apparelz Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by SUDHA APPARELS
LIMITED for the year ended 317 March, 2016, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement
of the Company with the Siock Exchanges. for the pericd from 1% April. 2015 to 30" November,
2015 and as per Regulation 17 to 27 clause (b) to (i} of sub-regulation (2) of Regulalion 46 and
paragraphs C. D and E of Schedule ¥V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India {Listing
Qbhgations and Disclosure requirements} Regulations. 2015 for the period from 1* December. 2015
to 31% March, 2016.

Management's responsibility
The Companys management takes full responsibility of the compliance of the condilions of
corparate governance as slipulated in the regulations menticned abave.

Auditors’ responsibility

Cur examinalion was limited to procedures and implemantation thereof, adopted by the Company
for ensurng the compliance of lhe conditions of Corporate Gavernance. It is neither an audit nar an
axpressian of opinion on the financial statements of the Company

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the 'Guidance Note on Audit Reports and
Certificate for Special purposes’ issued by the Institute of Chartersd Accauntants of India. Our
responsibility is to certify based on the work done.

Conclusion

In our epinien, and to the best of our infarmation and according ta the explanations given to us, we
cartify ihat the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as specified in
clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and Regulation 17 to 27, clause () to {i) of sub-regulation (2] of
Regulation 46 and paragraphs C. D and E of Schedule V of Listing Regulations. as applicable.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efliciency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs
of the Company.

Restrictions on use
This certficate is issued sclely for the purposes of complying with the aferesaid Regulations and
may not be sutable for any other purposes.

For KHANDELWAL PRAJAPATI| and CO,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 313154E

(V.N. KHANDELWAL)

Fartner

Membership Mo, 052862
PLACE: KOLKATA
CATED: 10.08.2018



SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

Management Discussion and Analxsis
Forming part of the Directors' Report for Lhe year ended 317 March, 2018

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

The statement in the Directors' Report and Management Discussion and Analysis Repert contains
"forward-locking stalements™ about the business, financial performance. skills and prospects of the
Company. Statements about the plans, intentions, expectations. beliefs, estimates, predictions or
similar expression for future are forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements should be viewed in the cantext of many nsk issues. and events that
could cause the actual performance to be different from that contemplated in the Directors’ Report
and Management Discussion and Analysis Report, including but not limited to, the impact of
changes in oil, Steel prices worldwide and domestic, economic and peltical condilions. We cannot
agsure that outcome of this forward-locking statements will be realized. Factors like changes in
Government regulations, tax laws and other factors such as industrial reiations and economic
developments etc. may further influence the company's operations or performance. The Company
disclaims any duty to update the information given in the aforesaid reports

ECONCMLIC ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW

ih 2015-168, the Lndian econaomy emerged as one of the few large economies with an encouraging
cutiook. The factors contribuling to this posttive outlook were cantralled inflation. rise in domestic
demand. increase in investments, decline in oil prices and the boost to reforms. among others
Accordingly to IMF. India is set to become the world's fastest-growing economy by 2016, ahead of
China.

Tha economic fundamenlals are showing healthy trends, which corroborates the expected growth in
the econamy. [nflation has been largely tamed. The investment cycle in India is shawing posilive
growth and expenditure on censumption is increasing. although in a fluctuating trend. This growth I8
ikely to be susiainable considenng government's focus on industrial activities, infrastructure
developmenl and ease of deing business.

Budget 2016 1s a good indicator of the government's intentions and plans. With the global economy
fraught with uncertainties, it is commendable that (he Indian Government is sticking to its fiscal
deficil target while pursuing the growth agenda, Government targets to namow tha central fiscal
defeit to 3.5% in 2016-17, after having cornfortably met its 3.9% larget for 2015-16. While public
investment and urban consumption were the major drivers for growth last hscal year, a
reinforcement of privale investment and rural consumption is critical if growth is te remain strong in
2016-17 and 2017-18.

Non-Banking Financial Companies {(NBFCs), continua to play a key role in the development of the
Counlry, by being present in under banked and unbanked regions and participating in Nclusive
growth.

The Company will conlinue to facus on making long-term strategqic iInvestment in varous companies
promoted by D.P. Jindal Group. Considering the expected growth in the economy and the prospects
of the economy as a whole and ol and gas industry in particular, the Company expects to restore its
valug with a2 hope of further enhancement in the long term for the benefit of the shareholders at
large

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The outlook for the sector aver the next year looks comparatively better on account of
pasitive trend in the economy which is expected to boost credit demand. This, along with
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renewal of certain infrastructure projects which have been cleared by the cabinet committee
in recent months and rise in industrial growth and ¢orporate capital expenditure also s
axpected to benefit most of the commercial assets financed by NBFCs. [tis also expected
to ease the pressure on the cash flows of their borrowers through improved utilization of
their assets.

OPPORTUNITIES and THREATS

The Company faresees, new apportunities to come up 1o expand its operations by way of equity
parficipation in new projects/expansion of existing projects, considering lang term growth potential of
the Country. The NBFC sector holds immense potential in view of the Government of India's
increased focus lowards Financial Inclusion,

The economic slowdown, coupled with inflationary pressure has the prospecls of curtailing buswness
growtt, raise lhe delinquency rate and enhance credit costs. Wilh muitiple players invading the
markel. the ability to campete effectively will depend, o some extent. on the Company’s ability to
raise low cost funds in future.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE

The Company is engaged in the business of Finance/|nvestment aclivities and leasing of immovable
properties

RISKS AND CONCERNS

As an NBFC, your Company is subjected to both external risk and internal nsk. External risk due to
interesl rate fluctuation, slowdown in economic growth rate, polibcal instability. market volatility,
decline in foreign exchange reserves, ete. Internal risk is associated with your Company’s business
which includes the strategic investments in a specific sectar. Any downward movement in the
prospects of lhe secior could be alhreat to Company's prospects.

AL this juncture of rapidly evolvng macroecanamic risks, it becomes mperative for business to rack
the macroeconomic perfarmance on an angoing basis. Your Company recagmizes the importance of
risk management and has invested in people, process and technologies to effectively miligate the
above risks. so as to arrive at a profitable investment decision.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUALCY

The Company has adequate internal contral system, commensurate with its size and nature of
operations, covenng assurance of recording all the transaction details. regulatory compliance and
prolecting the Company assets from any kind of loss or misuse. Accounting records are adeguate
for preparation of financial statements and pther financial information. Internal Audit is conducted on
a periocical basis to ascertain the adequacy and ffectiveness of internal contral systemns

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO CPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

The total income of the Company during the year was Rs 3438 20 lakhs as against Rs. 03878
lakhs in the previous year. The profit before tax during the year was Rs. 89.0H lakhs as against l0ss
of Rs. 1533.58 lakhs in the previgus year. The loss after tax was Rs. 37093 lakhs as against Rs
1943.58 lakhs in the previous year.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Your Company has employed professionalsiexperienced persons, playing an important role in the
operations of the Company. The Company will strengthen its aperative staff as and when the need
arses.
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KHANDELWAL PRAJAPATI & CO. B, Ganesh Chandra Avenue

Chiartered Acconnfants 5* Flsor, Room No, 33
holkata — 70001 A

(-A | FPhone — 2236 — 4634
2234 - 5110
E-mail — kpeaco@gmail.com
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF

M/S. SUDHA APPARE 1

Report on the Financial Statemenis

We bove anditod Ote cocompanyiog, stndelone Tnancie] staements of Mo, SUDHA APFARELS
LIMITER which comprise o the Balance Sheet as at 3 1™ March. 2006, the Swtement of Profiv und Loss and
thwe Cash Flow Statemsad for the year then whded, and o seimimary ol sigiifsam scoounting policie and other
gxplunatsry i Brnacion.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Fhe Company s 3oand of Dirscors is eaporsible for the matters sagd in Section 133405t of the
Cormpanic Acl 2003 ["Uhe A ] with respest b T preparplion and presentilion of these stantsbene Dnancial
statements that give a e and Bair view of the Bnaneial positieen and financial pertormance of the Cempany in
apgordaneg with the sceounting ponciple: penarally ageepied in ndig, ingluding Accounting Standands
specitied under section 133 of the AcL read with Bule 7 of the Companies dAcoounsy Rules 2004, This
rosi pemsability alse includes monenonee of adeguate socounting reeonds inosecoedunee with the pros istans of
the Awl for saleguarding the assets o the Company and for proventing and detecting tawds and cther
rrugulurities; selecion and application of appeopeiole scoouning pelicus; making judpgerments and estimates
that s ressonable and prodents; and design, implementnion and mainenance of adeguane intemal financial
contral, that were aperpting etfectively for msuring the accwmcy and completencss of the aceouriting reconds,
Pelevant o the preparation aed peesstation of e finawil salcmenls il give a tue and Fair view and are
e o material messtaiernend, whethet dode 1o iraad or fror.

Audilor’s Responsibility

Ciur responsihility is 1w cxpross an opinim on these siandalane Onanckal stvcimonts basod oy oor
audit. W by e daken inle acoount the provisions of e Act the acceunting and auditing stand ards and matters
which are ragaingd 0 b incladed in the audit reporl under the pronisions of the Act and foles made there
under.

W comluctwed our oedit it secondonee with e Stondeeds o Auditieg speciticd umder section
T30 ol the Act, Those Stondards reguire that we comply with ethical requiraments amd plan and perfm
the wwdit w0 wbdain reosenable assurance aboul whethor the financial stdements are froe from material
nuisalatlement.

An oaudit invebves performing procedurgs 0 obtain audit evidence aboul the amaunts wnsd discloswnes
in the fnuncial sttements. The procodures seloaed depend on the auditor’s judgment, including Lhe
assessment of the risks of material misseatemen of the financial satements, whather due to fraud or crror, In
muking those risk assassments, e auditor vonsiders ioternal Tneocial coatro] relovant o the Company™s
preparativn of the linancial sidements thal give s tue and Sair view i order i design aodil procedures duat are
approprizie in the circumstances. An audil also ineludes evaluating the gpprophateress F accounting policics
weend amd the ressomableness of be acceunting estimates made by the Compans s Direoters, ds well as
eualualing the overall presentation af te finaial iements.

W belieer el the auwdil evpdemes v have uTHained s sulTrciont and oppoopgiade o pros ice
a hasig o oue audic epinaen an the tinancial staterments..
Conl......2



KHANDELWAL PRAJAPATI & CO. 8. Ganesh Chandra Avcouc

Chartered Accountants 5 Flour, Room No. 33
Kolkata — HH 013

('A | Phone - 2236 — 4634
2234 — 5110

E-mail - kpcacodggmail.com

Opinion

Lis cur epireion and o the best ot our inlocmotion amd according ke the explanations given wus, the
wliarezsnind siandalome Finane il Stwerments read with Signilisan Avcounting Pelicies dd subject w give the
indiormation required by 1he Act in the manmer so required and gie o wue and Bair view in conformity with die
Aveounting Principles generally secepled in India of the State of AlRirs ol be Coanpany as 2 317 March,
2116 anil its Loss and Cash Flow for the year ended on that date,

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirerneats

1. As reguired by the Companies Auditor's Beport) Ocder, 2006 ("the Oeder®) issaed by the Central
Cavemment o India in terms of sub-seetion (1 1) of section 143 of the Act, we give in AnsexureA,
A sliterment an the mallers specified in the paragriph 3 and 4 af the Onder. o the saten applivable,

1. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Acl, we repor that :
3 We have obtained il the intormation and explanaions swhich w the bes of dur know laige and
belief were necessary K the purpose o our qudil

b.  1n our upinion proper books of acoount wx roguinad by law have boon kept by the company s Bie
as appears trom aur examination of thisa books,

. The Balanes Sheet and the Statement of Prodil and Loss and Cash Flow Jealt with by this Repon
are in agreement with the books of aemount;

d.In our opinkon, the aforesaid standalone Financial Satements comply with the Asgounting
Stamdurds speeci fed under Section 133 of the Aot resd with Hube 7 uf the Companics (Asoounts)
Hukes, N4,

<. Dmothe basis of written represenlaions received from the dircctors a5 on 31° March, 24014 taken
un reeond by the Board of Directors, oune of the directors are disqualified as on 31" March, 2006,
froem being appointed a5 4 diteetor in wems of Seetion 16402 ) olthe Acl, and

I Wih respet o e sdeyuscy of the intomil linancial controls over Tinancial reporting al the

Company and the operating elfectiveness of such conteels. pefr o our separge report in
“Apoczume-B -

Cont...3
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KHANDELWAL PRAJAPATI & CO. 8, Ganesh Chandra Avenue

Chartered Accountants 5* Flpar, Room No, 33
Kolkata - 700 013

% ‘ Phone — 2236 — 4634

1234 - 5110

E-mail — kpeacadia’gmail.com

B With respet 0 the atier magters b be ineludsd i the Audier™s Bepaort in accordince with Rule
1L ol the Companics (Audit and ASaweditors) Bules. 2414, in owr opinion and 1o the best ol aur
knonyhedpe and beliet and aceording we the infiormation ol eaplanstions gisen o s

i) The Company has disclised the impact 10 pending lideaion on stz lindnciab position i e
finanuial stalements « refer Soles On Accounl - L3 w6 the standalone el stgeonetit,

i} The Cempany has made prevision amounting e Rs 5461854395 2« at March, 31 2016, 1=
required order e applicab e law or weoounting standands. e material foreeeable lsses, on
Loy term contracls includimg derivatis ¢ controce.

i) Fhere has been no amaunt requirgd (o be transafzmed to the iwvester Iducation and Proection
funil b ther Company during the sear ended 317 klanch, 2006,

For KHANDELWAL PRAJAPATI & ().
Chartered Accountfants,
Firow Regisiralion No. 313154E

PLACE : KOLKATA
DATEL : 307052416
(¥Y.N.KHANDELWAL)
Fartner

Membership Mo. - 52862



KHANDELWAL PRAJAPATI & CO g, Ganesh Chandra Avenur

Chartered Acconntanis 5* Floor, Room No. 33
Kolkats - 7040 013

% | Phone — 223 — 4634

2234 - 5110

E-mail - kpeacoi gmail.com

Re. : SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED(3§.03.2016
Annexure-A referred to io our Independent Auditors® Report to the members of the
Company on the standalone finas seial statements for the year cnded 31 March, 2016

il a The: Company his imaintained proper rocords showing full particulars, including yuanlirs o
details and siwation of fived asiers.
b The Fixed Aswets bave heen phsically ventied by the Maagaoent o reasinable inencals
Juring the sear and no rabsrial diserepaneies fave been noticed on sugh verification,
€l Aveording o the information & explunstions gven woos and on the basis aof oue examination

ol the Fecords e Comipiary holids walid e deeds inrespect af its immuos able propers.

i Ihe lnventory has Boen physically verified during the sear by the managsment, In vur opinion, the
frequency of verification s reasonable and o moterisd discrepancies were oticad durmg such
verification. Uhe Company has ML invemary as at the close ol aceounging s

i} ) The Company has granted unsecured leans o three companies covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act.2003 amd in our
opinion, the terms and conditions of the grant of such leans are ol prejudicial to (he
imerest of the Carmnpany,

b} The repayment of the principal amount and payment of interest are generlly

regular ax per stipulation cxcepl in the case of lvan given to Kushagra Infrastoucture
Pyt. Led. with ourstanding talange of B 70 48 | 56/,

ol In our apinion and accanding (o the explamation given 1o us, the company ts tking
reasgnabie steps for recovery of the principal and imterest which an overdue for
mare than 90 days.

(LY In et npinim and asording w the information and expianations given w s, te Company has
complied with the provisions of seetwon 155 wnd ES of the Act, with oospoet W the topns ond
N EEUTIETIES M.

¥) The Company has not sccepled sny deposits from the public within the meaning of sections 73 and 74
of the Act and the reles framed there weder to the osient noniiled,

vil In owr cpinion and sceording w the information and explanation given io us the company” s scivilics
cur reuet rexjuioed madine ance wfany cost reoofds.

wikf i) Meoording ta the infoomation amd explanations provided oo and i per die feaotls ol die
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in Jeposiling undispuied

sertutory dues ingluding income tax and other statators duss. ax wpplicable b it with the
APNTOOTIALE Slborides.

Cont...2
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KHANDELWAL PRAJAFPATI & CO. 8. Gapesh Chandra Avenue

Chartered Acconntanis 5" Floor, Room No. 33

b)

kolkata — 109 013
m | Plione — 2236 — 4634
3234 - 5110

E-mail - kpcacod gmail.com

As explained to us and the recotds of the company exarnined by us. Ihe details off
dispruted dues not paid wwardy incone tax as on 31 Mareh, 2006 are as follows:-

AOUNE A5 per

F.Y ta which Farum whers demand order
Nature of PDues  the matrer pertains.  disputes pending (Rs, in lacs)
L0 BEY
[ncome Tax
under JOE - 08 Commissioner of
Income Tax Al vz T [ Appeals) 4,53 433
1461
2009 - 10 Commissioner of 0.03 008
Incame Tax {Appeals)
2010-11 Commissioner of 340,16 * 34016
Income Tax {Appeals)
2001 12 Commissioner of 25143 13145

Ingome Tax { Appeals)

223 Commisiener al 380 -
Incame Tax { Appeals)

*(ut of this Rs, 18.834.1 14/- has been deposied under dispute.

¢} Besides above, without gualiling our opinien. we dras altention 1o Note No, 153
of Notes on Financial Staternent regarding contingent lability of the cormpany, not
provided for on avcounl of Service Tux Bayable of Ks. 3817716~ penaining 1o
period from October 2010 to September 2011 (excluding inwrest applicable, if any)
on rental ingomne which has neither been received Inom the tenants nor deposited
with the prescribed authooty on account of l&gal dispute raised by the tenants. the
final adjudication of which 1s pending before the Apex Court. The Company
howewver, helds writlen commitment from the 1enants for collection of entiee lability
arising upen the conpany on Lhis account.

Cont... 3
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KHANDELWAL PRAJAPATI & CO. 8, Ganesh Chandrn Avenuc

Chartered Accounignis 5 Floar, Room Ko, 33
halbata - T00 01 3

% | Ehone — 2236 — 4634
2234 - 5110

E-mail - kpeacod gmail.com

viii} The Unmpany has  nen Taken any lan or borrowing o financial institution. banks, govemment or
dehentare helders during the sear, Avcordingly. paragraph 30wl e Omder is not applicable,

inj The Company did ool raisc any money by way ob iniiad poblic ulfer or lurther pablic affer {ingluding
debt inpdrwnents ) and o loans duning the wear Aceondingls, paragraph Hise of the Order i5 mn
upplicakle.

1) Acoarding th the mtormalion and cxplanations given woos, no material frosd by dhe Company or un

the Company By il o ltiers or omploress has Been nuticed or reportsd during 1he course of our audi,

i) In respescl el mansgeridl fomumeration padipoevided by the company, are sceonding we the provisions
of Section Y7 read with %chedule ¥ 1 the Awt.

i} T e wprisivn . swsed duvording fe the information and osplanasions gisen to us. the Company is nota
nidhi vompany, Aceenlingls Parggraph 3xiipofthe Order is vt applicable,

5iii] Acoording wr the infommation and esplanistions gmoen W us and Based one o eaamination of e
revends of the Uompany, transactions with e relied paties are in complianee with Xections 177 and
188 uldwe Act where wplicable ad Jdetails af such transaaticns have Been diselimed in the fingneisl
suremenis a5 requined by the applicable aecounling standdands,

Xt Avennding 10 the intormation and esplanalions gisen k0 us wnd based on our exarmmation of 1he
records ol the Company, the Cempany e nst made any prefoeential allomment or peisale plavenut
el shires snt fully o parlly converlible debentures during the vear.

] According to the infermation and eaplanaticns given to us and based on our examinations of
the records of the Company, the Company has it entered inlo non-cash transaetions with
directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragaph 3{xv) of the Order 15 not
applicable.

wil  In our opimien & on the basis of records & documents examined by us the company s
required (o be registered ws 45«14 of the Reserve Bank of [odia AcL 934 and the company
has nbtained such registrlion.

Eor KHANDELWAL PRAJAPATI & CO),
PLACE - KOLKATA Chartered Accountants.
Firm Registration No, 313154E
ATED : MASE0L6

(V.N. KHANDLELWAL)
Puartncr
Membership MNo. - 052862
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Anncawre B 1o the Awditors Repurt
Eeport on the Internal Financial Controls vader Clause (i) of Sub-section ¥ of Scction

143 of the Campanies Act, 2413,

W have sudited the mtomal Otaeciel contnols wser financia) epording of M, SUDHA AFPARELS
LIMITED the Cempany™ as of March, 310 2ké in conjunction, with our audin of the standakome finaneial
sluleomeots o The Company o the vear cislod oo tat Jate,

Management's Hesponsibllity For Internal Financial Controls.

Fhe Campany’s Management is responsible for establishing and muinaioiog internal finamcial commals il
en the internat contral swer tnancial reporting griterig edablished by lhe Company cansidering the essential
corepuanenls e internal control stated in the Guidioece Nowe o Aot of Iedernal Finaneisl Controls Over
Finwncial Hepnorting issoed by the Instidate of Clarterad Acoouniants of Indha, | hese responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenanse of adequate intemal Jinmcial vontrols thal wore sporaieg
ethectively tir cosuring the ordecls and eficient gengkact alils business, including adherence oo ahe Company’s
pulicies. the safeguarding of its assots, the prevemtion and demction of ruds and ermes, the soourss and
vonp leteiess ol the aecowunting reoords. and the Lioiely preptaraltcm ot relishle Gnpnedl informaion, as
reypuircd under the Companics Acl 2013 0 the Ay,

Audilor's Responsibility

tiar responsibility 5 o cxpross an opinion on the Companss internal finanesal conlrols oner finamnceiak
reparine bascd oncur audit, We conducted oue wedil o acvendanee with the Guidance e an Aodic ol
Interna] Finanesal Contreds Owver Financial Reporting (the “Ouidance Mot and the Standards on Auditing as
sproificd wnder section 14300103 of the Acl, Lo the extont applicable 1o a0 zudit of inberal Grancial conrebs.
both applicable 1w oan auddt of [nemal Finaecial Controls and, Both issued by the Insinme of Charerel
Avevuntunts of Iodia, Those Standards and the Guidance Wote require that sae comply wuh glical
ruguirements wnd plan and perfieny the aedit w obuin reasonab e assurmee gboun w hethor adeguadte internal
finangtal ontrmls aner linanglal repueing was esiahlished and maintained and i such cunwrols opensied
ctlectivels inall materidl respegs.

Clur dadil involves performing procedures o obiain audit es tdebce about the adegquaey of the internal nancial
contndls vyslem aver Gnancial reporting and theie opergting oftfectiseness. Owr audit of infemal {inencial
cenrels wer financial reporting ineludid obwining an ooderstarmding of intemal Ginancidl contrils over
financiad repuoring, asessing e risk that o material weakness oxists, and desting and evaluating Lhe Jesign and
uvperating eftectis eness wlinternil controd based vn the Sesessed sk, 1 he procedunes selecled depend on Lhe
auditor's judgemen, including the assessment of th risks of maerial misstatcment of the Araneial staements
suhetharr o 1 Trad ur crrar.

W helewe that the audit evidenge we e obtidned is seltcient and appropriae © proside o basis for our
Audit apnicm on the imtemal fnaraal control sy stem over financisl rgponing,

Meaning of Internal Financial Conirols Over Finuncial Reporting.

A Compans s Uemal Tinancia] contrel over Moozl reporting is o process designed @ peos ide reasonahle
assuran ce reganding the réliabidiy of hnaneil reporting and the preparation of financial stalements for oxtermal
TRER b U aepandanae with generslly weceplad avvounling principle. A Company’s inkemal (inancial conrol
rver fnancial repenting ineludes those policies und procedurss that (13 pertain to the maintenance of eoerds
Pt o rewsonale delail. accurately and Twiely redlect the ransctions and dispositions of Uie ey of e
company, £ 2} provide reasonable assurance that ransactions are reconded 25 necessurs 10 permit preparation of
finaneial stalements in wceeodance with generally accepled aocouniing priniples. and tha recsipty and
evpenliluces of the compeny ae heing made only in accordince with aulhorzations of management and
Jircetors ul the axmpans s (33 provide ressosoble weuronee repanding prevention or timely Jesectivn ol
urtau L ieed Avguasition, use, er disposilion ot 1he company” = assers That could bas e o mawerial cfteel on the
[inancia] slabertreats.

2K



KHANDELWAL PRAJAPATI & CO 8, Ganesh Chandra Avenue

Chartered Accountants o 5" Floor, Room No. 33
| Kolkata - 700 013

% | Phone — 2236 — 4634
2234 -5110
E-mail - kpcaco@gmail.com

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may cccur and not be detected. Also projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may detericrate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March, 31,2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Explanatory paragraph

We also have audited, in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, the financial statements of Company,
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March,31, 2016, and the related Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash
Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and our report dated 30™ May, 2016 expressed unqualified opinion.

For KHANDELWAL PRAJAPATI & CO,
PLACE : KOLKATA Chartered Accountants.

Firm Registration No. 313154E
DATED : 30/05/2016

(V.N. KHANDELWAL)
Partner
Membership No. - 052862



BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2016

Particulars
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Funds

Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus

Non-Current Liabilities
Other Long Term Liabilities
Others - Security Deposit
Long- Term Provisions

Current Liabilities - Unsecured
Short -Term Borrowings

Other Current Liabilities

Short-Term Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

Total Equity & Liabilities

ASSETS
Non- Current Assets
i. Fixed Assets

-Tangible Fixed assets

ii. Non-Current Investments
iii. Long Term Loans & Advances

Current Assets
Inventories
Trade Receivable
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Short-Term Loans and Advances
Other Current Assets

Total Assets

SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

NOTES

52

5.3

W~ »

9.1

9.3
94
95

As At As At
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Rupees Rupees
7,270,120 7,270,120

2,278,461,008

2,315,559,543

2,285,731,128

2,322,829.663

57,802,563 57,802,563
1,245,762 986,702
59,048,325 58,789,265
235,121,654 195,792,691
3,463,145 632,618
556,765,761 403,724,637
795,350,560 600,149,946

3,140,130,013

2,981,768,874

829,451,589
1,197,046,158
111,215,065

849,970,432
1,157,081.158
120,417 257

2,137,712,812

2,127 ,468,897

- 29,649,988
43,584,104 19,091,839
1,781,806 795,222
953,496,491 798,291,241
3,554,800 5471687
1,002,417,201 854,299,977

3,140,130,013

2,981,768,874

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies followed by the Company is given in Notes -1

The Accompanying Notes are an Integrai Part of Financial Statement.

As per our report of even date attached

For KHANDELWAL PRAJAPAT! & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 313154E

V.N. Khandeiwal
Partner
Membership No. 52862

Place - Kolkata
Dated : 30-05-2016

Lo

For & on Behalf of the Board

M.R Garg
Whole-time Director
DIN - 00445709

Rajesn Gupta
Company Secretary

Savita Jindal
Director

DIN - 00449740

Arup Kumar Mitra

CFO



STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

Particulars

INCOME

Revenue from Operations

QOther Income

EXPENDITURE

Purchase of Stock in Trade
Decreasel{Increase) in Stock in Trade
Empioyees Benefit Expeses

Finance Cost

Depreciation / Amortization

Other Expenses

Contingent Provision against Standard Assets

NOTES

10
10

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional .extraordinary items and tax

Exceptional ltems

Provision for Diminution in value of investment

Prowision for Non Performing Assets

Profit / (Loss) after exceptional and extraordinary items and before tax
Tax Expense - Current Tax

Profit / {Loss) from Continuing Operation

Earning Per Share (Basic/ Diluted)

SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Rupees Rupees
211,606,901 177,101,533
132,221,813 126,776,854
343,828,714 303,878,487
112,300,000 107,800,000
29,649,988 17.857 937
3,454,953 3,561,058
9,086,821 125,271
25,073,615 26,626,562
2,320,748 2,227,104
308,595 792 594
182,194,720 158,990,526
161,633,994 144 887,961
145,165,460 318,923,222
7,567,069 (20,677 ,653)
8,901,465 (153,357,608}
46,000,000 41,000,000
(37,098,535} (194,357 608)
{51.03) (267 34)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies followed by the company is given in Notes -1

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of Financial Statement.
As per our report of even date attached
For KHANDELWAL PRAJAPATI & CO.

Chartered Accountants
Fwm Registration No. 313154E

V.N. Khandelwal
Partner

Membership No. 52862

Place ' Kolkata

Dated . 30-05-2016

L)

For & on Behalf of the Board

M.R. Garg
Whole-time Director
DIN - 00449709

Rajesh Gupta
Company Secretary

Savita Jindal
Director
DIN - 00449740

Arup Kumar Mitra

CFO



SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT ANNEXED TO THE BALANCE SHEET

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2016

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net Profit before tax and extraordinary items
Adjusted for:

Depreciation

Contingent Provision for Standard Assets

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes
Adjusted for:

Trade & Other Receivables

Inventories

Trade Payables & Others

Cash Generated from operations
Direct taxes Paid

Cash Flow before extraordinary items
Extraordinary item

Net Cash From Operating Activities

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets
Purchase of Investments

Net Cash from Investing Activities

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds / (Reduction) of Short Term Borrowings

Net Cash from Financing Activities
Net increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C})
Opening Balances of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Closing Balances of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
As per our report of even date attached
For KHANDELWAL PRAJAPATI & CO.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 313154E

V.N. Khandelwal
Partner
Membership No. 52862

Place . Kolkata
Dated : 30-05-2016

N2

Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Rs. Rs.

161,633,994 144 887 961
25,073,615 26,626,562
308,595 792‘594
187,016,204 172,307 117
(158,891,532) (325,973.574)
29,649,988 17,857,837
3,089,587 808,029
60,864,247 (135,200,491)
{54,686,904) (58,871,982)
6,177,343 (192,072,473)
6,177,343 (192,072,473}
(4,554,722) (2,553,014
(39,965,000) (6,161,108)
(44,519,722) (8,714,123)
39,328,963 195,792,691
39,328,963 195,792 691
986,584 (4,993,504}
795,222 5,788,126
1,781,806 795,222
886,584 (4,993,504)

For & on behalf of the Board

M.R. Garg

Whole-time Director
DIN - 00449709

Rajesh Gupta
Company Secretary

Savita Jindal

Director

DIN - 00449740

Arup Kumar Mitra

CFO



Sudha Apparels Limited

ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE - 1: SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOLLOWED BY THE COMPANY
a. Basis of Preparation and Accounting

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis
and in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and in compliance
with the applicable accounting standards. The accounting policies, except otherwise stated,
have been consistently applied by the Company.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per company's
norma!l operating cycle of 12 months and other criteria set-out in  Schedule-lll of the
Companies Act, 2013.

b. Use of Estimates

The presentations of financial statements is in conformity with the generally accepted
accounting principles which requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the
reportable amount of assets and liabilities on the date of financial statements and the
reportable amount of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Differences
between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the year in which the results are
known / materialized.

C. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized on accrual basis in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS-9)
“Revenue recognition”.

Interest Income is accrued on time proportion basis and recognised only if in the opinion of
Management realisation is certain. Profit and loss on saie of investment is recognised on
contract date. Dividend income is recognised when right to receive dividend is established.

d. Fixed Assets & Depreciation

Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition, construction less accumulated depreciation.
The cost comprises of purchase price and any other directly attributable cost of bringing the
assets to working condition for its intended use. Depreciation on assets have been provided
on pro-rata basis, for the period of use, on written down value method up to 31.03.2014,
Depreciation is calculated at the rates prescribed under schedule XIV to the Companies
Act, 1856. From 1.04.2014 depreciation is calculated by aliocating the depreciable amount
of each assets of its estimated useful life. Depreciation amount of asset is the cost of assets
/ W.DV.as on 1.04.2014 less its residual value. Useful life on an asset is taking as
prescribed under Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

el



Sudha Apparels Limited

Investments

Long Term Investments are classified into Non current investments and others are classified as
current Investment current. Long-term investments are valued at their acquisition cost. Current
investments are stated at lower of cost and fair market value. The provision for any diminution in the
value of Non current investments is made only if such a decline is other than temporary in the
apinion of the management.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at iower of cost or net realisable value.

Employees Benefits

All employee benefits like salary, bonus, ex-gratia & others accruing & payable within the reporting
accounting period are classified as Short Period and recognised on accrual basis.

Retirement benefits for Leave Encashment & Gratuity to employees are insignificant and un-funded
Long-Term Term Liability classified as Non-Current. Gratuity payable to an employee is equal to 15
days salary for every completed year of service calculated as per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Leave
encashment liability is calculated for the period fixed by Company policy for which daily salary is arrived
by dividing the salary last drawn. The liability for retirement benefits are restated on Balance Sheet date
and difference with the opening balance is charged in the Profit & Loss Accounts.

Taxes on Income

Current Tax:

Provision for Taxation is ascertained on the basis of assessable profit computed in accordance with
the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1951 & tax advices, wherever considered necessary.

Deferred Tax:

Deferred Tax is recognised, subject to the consideration of prudence, as the tax effect of timing
difference between the taxable income & accounting income computed for the current accounting
year and reversal of earlier years’ timing difference.

Deferred Tax Assets are recognised and carried forward to the extent that there is virtual certainty,
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be
realised.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised only when there is reliable estimate of present obligation as a result of
past events. Contingent Liabilities are disclosed by way of Notes on accounts. Contingent
Provision against Standard Assets is accounted as per RBI directive on standard assets.
Contingent Assets are neither accounted nor disclosed in the financial statements due to
uncertainty of their realisation.

Event occurring after the Balance Sheet Date
Event occurring after the Balance Sheet Date and till the date on which the Financial Statement

are approved, which are material in nature and indicate the need for adjustments in the financial
statement are considered.



Sudha Apparels Limited

Impairment of Assets

At each Balance Sheet Date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an
assets has impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount.
If the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is
recognized in the Profit and Loss Account to the extent the carrying amount exceeds recoverable
amount.

According to Management estimation the recoverable amount of the fixed assets is not less than
its carrying amount as on the Balance Sheet date, hence no impairment provision is required this
year.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost attributable to acquisition of qualifying assets till date of acquisition is capitalised as
part of cost of such assets. All other borrowing costs are classified as revenue expense

Earning Per Share

Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing net profit available for distribution to Equity
shareholder by weighted Average Number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earning per share is calculated by dividing net profit available for distribution to Equity
shareholder by weighted Average Number of Potential equity shares outstanding during the year
arrived at giving effect to all dilutive options.

Research and Developments
Revenue Expenditure on Research & Development is charged in the Statement of Profit & Loss of

the year in which it 1s incurred. Capital Expenditure on Research & Development is capitalised with
the cost of asset for which it is incurred.



Sudha Apparels Limited

Annexure — 1

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial company
[as required in terms of paragraph 13 of Non-Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial ( Non-
Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015]

(Rupees)

Particulars

Liabilities side:

Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs inclusive of
interest accrued thereon but not paid:

Amount Out-

standing

Amount
Overdue

(a) Debentures

Secured

Unsecured

(other than falling within the
meaning of public deposits®)

{b) Deferred Credits
{c) Term Loans

{d) Inter-corporate toans and borrowing
(e) Commercial Paper

235,121,654

(h) Other Loans (specify nature)
* Please see note 1 below

Assets side:

2)

Amount OutstangiggA;:

1. Break-up of Loans and Advances including Dbill
receivable (other-than those included in (4) below):

{(a) Secured

~ {b)Unsecured

1043551814

Break-up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other
assets counting towards AFC activities

(1) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry
Debtors :

{a8) Financial Lease

‘ (b) Operating Lease

- (i)Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry
debtors:

{a) Assets on hire
(b) Repossessed Assets

(i) Hypothecation loans counting towards EL/HP activities

|
(a) Loans where assets have been re-possessed

(b) Loans other than (a) above

H6




Sudha Apparels Limited

Break-up of Investments:

Current Investments:

1. Quoted:
t. Shares; (a) Equity
{b) Preference

ii. Debentures and Bonds
Units of mutual funds

Government Securities
Others {please specify)

2. Unquoted:
i. Shares: (a) Equity

{b) Preference

il Debentures and Bonds
Units of mutual funds
Government Securities

~ Others (please specify)

Long Term Investments:

1. Quoted:
i Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference

904,624,325

ii. Debentures and Bonds
Units of mutual funds

Government Securities
Others (please specify)

2. Unquoted:
i. Shares: (a) Equity
{b) Preference

ii. Debentures and Bonds
Units of mutual funds
Government Securities

Others (please specify)

57,456,833
155,000,000

79,965,000

‘Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above:

Please see note 2 helow

Category

Amount of net of provisions

1. Related Parties** Secured

Unsecured

(a) Subsidiaries -
(b) Companies in the same group -
(c) Other related parties i -

2. Other than related parties -
Total -

| Total

S U S

Investors group wise classifications of all Investments (current and Iong term) in shares |

and securities (both quoted and unquoted):
Please see note 3 below




Sudha Apparels Limited

Category Market Value /
Break-up or Fair

Value or NAV

Book Value (Net of

Provisions)

1. Related Parties™
(a) Subsidiaries -
(b) Companies in the same -

group
{c) Other related parties -

2, Other than related parties 1,655,138,944

1,197,046,158

Total 1,555,138,944

1,197,046,158

NG

** As per Accounting Standard of ICA| {Please see Note 3)

Other information

Particulars

Amount

() Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties

(b) Other then related parties

19,285,444

Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties

{b) Other then related parties

. 11,013,559

(i) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debts

Lt



SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 ST MARCH, 2016

NOTES - 2 : SHARE CAPITAL

As At As At
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Rupees Rupees

Authorised
1,000,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 10,000,000 10,000,000

10,000,000 10,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
Eqguity Capital
727.012 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 7,270,120 7,270,120

7,270,120 7,270,120

a) Of the above Shares 527,012 Equity Shares were allotted as fully paid up
pursuant to scheme cf amalgamation without payment being received in cash

b) Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding at the beginnging and end of the year

SHARE CAPITAL
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
Particulars As at 31.03.2016 As at 31.03.2015
Nos. =~ Rupees Nos. Rupees
At the beginning of Year 727,012 7,270,120 727,012 7,27C,120

Add - Addition during the Year - - - N

Less - Reduction during the Year

At the end of the Year 727012 7,270,120 727.012 7,270,120

¢} Equity shares holders have right to receive dividend proposed by the Board of Directors, subject to approval of shareholders
at the Genera! Meeting.

d) Equity shareholders have ne right to repayment of capital except, distributicn of surplus assets on liquidation.

¢) List of persons holding more than 5% equity shares of Rs 10/- each of the company:

Name of Share-Hoplders As at 31.03.2016 As at 31.03.2015
Nos % Nos %

1. Jindal Giobal Finance & Investment Ltd . 107,418 14.77 107,418 14.77
2. Flakt Dealcom Ltd. 35,761 | 492 35,761 4.92
3. Pushpanjaii Investrade Pvt Ltd. 70,000 9.63 70,000 9.63
4 Dharam Pal Jindal 69,900 9.61 68,900 9.61
5. Savita Jindal 106,662 14 67 ) 106,662 14.67
6. Saket Jindal 70,000 963 70,000 9.63
7. Raghav Jindal 145,123 19.96 145,123 19.96

H9
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32

33

4.1

42

51

52

8.3

53A

53B

53C

SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

NOTES - 3 : RESERVE & SURPLUS

Particulars

Capital Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet

Other Reserves
a) General Reserve

As per last Balance Sheet
Add : Addition during the year

b) Statutory Reserve
As per lasl Batance Sheet
Add : Addition during the year

Surpius in Statement of Profit & Loss Alc

As per last Balance sheet

Profit/{L oss) during the Year

Less - Transfer to Statutory Reserve
Less - Transfer to General Reserve
Current Year Surplus/(Deficit)
Closing Surplus/(Deficit)

Total

NOTES - 4 : NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other Long Term Liabilities
Others- Security Deposit

Long- Term Provisions
For Empioyees Benefits

NOTES - 5 : CURRENT LIABILITIES

Short -Term Borrowings { Unsecured )

Loans From Related Parties, Repayable on Demand

Other Current Liabilities
Liabilities for Expenses
Liabilities for Statutory Dues

Short Term Provisions

Contingent Provision for Standared Assets
Opening Balance

Addition during the year

Provision for Diminution in value of Investment
Opening Balance
Addition during the year

The above provision is made @ 0 25% of Standard Assets on the reporing date as per RBI

guidelines applicable to NBFC.
Provision for Non Performing Assets

Opening Balance
Addition / (Adjusted) during the year

Tetal Current Liabilities

As At As At
31.03.18 31.03.15
Rupees Rupees

51,581,498 51,581,498
82,746,597 82,746,597
82,746,597 82,746 597
482,108,859 482,108,859
482,108,859 482,108,859

1,689,122,589

(37,098,535)

1.893.480,197

{194,357,608)

(37,098,535}

(194,357 ,608)

(37,098,535)

(194,357 608)

1,662,024,054

1,699,122 588

2,278,461,008

2,315,559,543

67,802,563 57,802,563
1,245,762 986,702
59,048,325 58,789,265
235,121,654 195,792,691
2,545,938 609,487
917,207 23.131
1,999,842 1.207 248
308,595 782,594
2,308,437 1,999,842
401,018,979 82,096,757
145 165,460 318,923,222
546,185,439 401,019,979
704,816 21,382,489
7,567,069 {20,677,653)
8,271,885 704 818
656,765,761 403,724 637
803,622,445 600,854,762

o
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Notes forming part of the Firancial Statements

NOTES -7 : NON - CURRENT INVESTMENTS

(Fully paid up unless otherwise specified)

NON - TRADE
i) Quoted

Equity Shares

Rs
Rs
Rs
Rs
Rs
Rs.
Rs.
Rs.
Rs.
Rs
Rs.
Rs.
Rs.
Rs
Rs
Rs
Rs
Rs.
Rs.
Rs.
Rs.

i) Un-

5 each of Jindal Drilling & Industries Limited

10 each of Haryana Capfin Limited

10 each of Parsvnath Devefopers Limited

10 each of Videocon Industries Limited

10 each of Electrosteel Steels Limited

10 each of GOL Offshore Limited

10 each of Uttam Value Steel Limited

1C each of Monnet Ispat & Energy Limited

5 each of Weispun Corporation Limited

2 each of Aban Offshore Limited

10 each of Hindustan Ol Exploration Co Limited
10 each of Selan Exploration Tecnology Limited
1 each of Jindal Steel & Power Limited

10 each of SVOGL Oil Gas And Energy Limited
10 each of Hexa Tradex Limited

10 each of IDBI Bank Limited

2 each of Jindal Saw Limited

1 each of NMDC Limited

10 each of Oil India Limiteg

1 each of Vedanta Limited

10 each of Wetspun Enterprises Limited

Quoted

a) Equity Shares

Rs.
Rs.
Rs
Rs.
Rs.
Rs
Rs
Rs
Rs
Rs
Rs

10 each of Crishpark Vincom Limited
10 each of Dytop Commodeal Limited

10 each of Jindal Global Finance & Investment Limite

10 each of Jindal Pipes Limited

10 each of Sparlerk Dealcomm Limited

10 each of Whitepin Tie -Up Limited

10 each of Jindal Pe-x Tubes Pvt Limited

10 each of Jindal Explodnll Limited

10 each of Neptune Builtech Pvt. Limitec

10 each of Sigma Infrastructure Pvt. Limited

10 each of Kushagra Infrastructure Pvt. Limited

b) Preference Shares

Rs
Rs

Rs. 10 each of Jindal Global Finance & Investment Limitt

10 each of Global Jindal Fininvest Limited
10 each of Crishpark Vincom Limited

c) Bonds- Tax Free

indian Railway Finance Corporation Limited
Power Finance Corporation Limited

c) NCD's

Antarctica Properties Co. Limited

Aggregate Value of Unguoted Investments
Aggregate Value of Quoted Investments
Market Value of Quoted Investments

Notes

All investment in shares of Private Limited Companies are subject to restrictions on transfer of shares as contained in the

Articles of Association of respective company
Allinvestment in Preference Shares are optionally convertible as per terms of issue and redeemable after 3 years but before 7 years
from date of aliotment These shares carry preferential right of cumulative dividend @ 12% per annum from date of allotment

SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

As At 31.03.2016

As At 31.03 2015

Numbers Rupees Numbers Rupees
5,335,000 439,202,514 5,335,000 438,202,514
1,014,322 43,479,630 1,014,322 43,479,630

1,000 48,827 1.000 48.827
400 17,441 100 17,441
9,164,842 57,821,656 9164 842 57821656
1,500 622,765 1,500 622,765
59,944 965,552 59,944 965 552
618,483 347,721,746 618,483 347 721746
2,800 164,364 2,800 164 364
100 47,233 100 47233
2,000 470,786 2,000 470,786
1,100 435,456 1.100 435 456
18,466 9,873,849 18.466 9.873.849
1,500 604,728 1,500 604,728
2,600 95,156 2.600 95,166
3,000 358,085 3,000 358085
6,000 758,939 6.000 758,939
5,000 1,177,641 5,000 1.177 641
875 444,373 875 444 373
300 82,081 300 82.081
1,680 231,503 140 231,503
81,600 818,020 81600 818.020
85,700 861,240 85,700 861.240
700,100 2,748,505 700.100 2748 505
3,741,740 14,060,798 3.741.740 14,060,798
81,000 812,000 81.000 B12 000
80,000 805,000 80.000 805.00C
100,000 1,000,000 100.000 1.000,000
9,500 95,000 9,500 95.000
9,810 98,405 9.810 98 405
9,800 98,415 9.800 98,415
1,185,000 36,059,450 1.195.000 36.059 450
250,000 25,000,000 250.000 25,000.000
775,000 120,000,000 775000 120.000.000
200,000 10,000,000 200,000 10.000.000
25,000 25,055,000 -
50 54,910,000 -
- 8 40,000.0GC

1,197,046,158

212,456,833
904,624,325
790,176,668

L2

1157087158

212 456 833
904,624 325
§75.296.132
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SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financia! Statements

NOTE -8 : LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
{Unsecured, Considered good)
Capital Advances

Security Deposit

NOTES - 9 : CURRENT ASSETS

INVENTORIES
Stock in Trade - Mutual Fund Units

TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Unsecured, Considered good)

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months
Other Receivable

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on hand

Balances with Banks
- In Current Accounts

SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES (Unsecured)

Loans to Bodies Corporates
(Considered, Good)
Qther then related parties

(Considered, Doubtful}
Related Parties
Others

Other Short-Term Advances

Advance Income Tax

{Net of Provision Rs.258.789,161/-. Previous Year Rs. 213,789.161/-)

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Prepaid Expenses

Interest Receivable

Dividend Receivabie

Total Current Assets

As At As At
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Rupees Rupees

110,625,995 119,828,187
589,070 589,070
111,215,065 120,417,257
- 29,649,988
- 29,649,988
43,584,104 19,091 839
43,584,104 19,091,839
17,771 62,559
1,764,035 732,663
1,781,806 795222
812,748,845 680,108,544
7,048,156 7,048,156

12,237,288 -
100,891,530 100,250,773
20,570,672 11,883,768
953,496,491 799.291 241
233,626 106,207
3,313,674 5,365,480

7,500 -
3,554,800 5,471,687
1,002,417,201 854 269,977

in the opinion of Board and to the best of their knowledge and belief . the value on realisation of above current
assets would, in ordinary course of business ,be not less than the amount at which they are stated.



101

102

SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements Year ended Year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Rupees Rupees
NOTES - 10 : INCOME
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Mutual Fund Units 143,276 728 127,339,099
Dividend - on Non current Investment 14,420,275 7,884,995
Interest (TDS Rs. 5,338 869/-, Previous Year Rs.4,244 838/-) 53,909,898 41,877 439
Total Revenue from operations 211,606,901 177,101,533
OTHER QPERATING INCOME
Rent (TDS Rs. 12,901,356/-, Previous Year Rs. 12,673,807/ 129,145,572 126,776,954
Other Income
Profit on Transfer of rights in Land property 3,035,131
Liabilities Written Back 41,110 -
Total other Income 132,221,813 126,776,954
Total income 343,828,714 303,878 487
NOTE -11: EXPENSES
Purchases of Stock in Trade
item - Mutual Fund Units 112,300,000 107,800,000
Decrease/(Increase) in $tock in Trade
ltem - Mutual Fund Units
Opening Stock 29,649,988 47,507 925
Less - Closing Stock - 29,649 988
Decrease/(Increase) in Stock in Trade 29,649,988 17,857 937
EMPLOYEES' BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salaries & Other Allowances 3,410,400 3,507 642
Staff Welfare Expenses 44,553 53,416
3,454,953 3,561,058
INTEREST & FINANCE COSTS
Interest on Unsecured Short Term Loan 9,030,961 102,990
Bank Charges 55,860 22,281
9,086,821 125,271
OTHER EXPENSES
D.P. Charges 3,075 2,809
Rent 195,000 195,000 -
Rates & Taxes 6,050 5,960
Postage & Telephone 68,390 37,966
Printing & Stationery 7,748 6,515
Fee & Subscription 33,490 29,798
Traveiling & Conveyance 420,789 323,297
Repair & Maintenance- Others 71,659 196,652
tegal & Professional Charges 95,022 92222
Insurance 176,002 175.840
CSR Expenses 1,000,000 1,000.000
internal Audit Fee 10,000 10,000
Advertisement & Publicity 28,767 51,250
Auditors' Remuneration .
- Audit Fee 85,875 38.326
- Tax Audit Fee 6,840 6,741
- Certification / others services 46,740 24718
Miscellaneous Expenses 65,401 29,010
Total 2,320,748 2,227 104

Yy
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SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements Year ended Year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Rupees Rupees

NOTE : 12 - Earning Per Share

Net Profit /(Loss) afier Tax (37,098,535) (194,357.608)
Total Number of Equity Shares 727,012 727,012
Earning Per Equity -Share Basic & Diluted {51.03) (267.34)
NOTE : 13 - DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES)

For Depreciation of Fixed Assets 21,194,190 12,890,195
For Expenses Allowable on Payment 404 187 320,135
for Unabsored Capital Losses 23,328,920 23.328.920
Total Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) on Balance Sheet Date 44,927,297 36,539,250
Less Opening Balance 36,539,250 27,915,806
Deferred Tax Income/(Expense) for the year 8,388,047 8,623,444

In view of uncertainity of realisation ; the above Deferred Tax Assels/Income has not been recognised in the

Financial Statements.

NOTE : 14 - RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

a) Name of Key Managerial Person
Mr. M.R. Garg - Wholetime Director
Mr. Arup Kumar Mitra - CFO
Mr. Rajesh Gupta - Company Secretary

{b} Enterprise where control exists
Subsidiary
Crishpark Vincom Limited {54%)

c) Other Related Parties with whom Transactions have taken place during the Year
Associate Company
Kushagra Infrastructure Pvt. Limited

Other Related Concern/Party
Sigma Infrastructure Pvt . Limited
Smt Savita Jindal({Director)

Transacactions with Related Party during the year

Loan to subsidiary{closing balance) 108,979,373 215,146,287

Loan to Associate Company (closing balance) 7,048,156 7.048,156

l.oan to Other Related Concern{closing balance) 13,727,715 46,821,926

Payment for Other Services to Related Party

Associate Party { Smt Savita Jindal) 70,655 70.655

Rent Paid to Related Parties

Associate Party { Smt. Savita Jindal) 195,000 195.000

Managerial Remuneration - Mr. M.R. Garg - Wholetime Director 967,488 731,849

Balance Payable by the Company to Related Party

Associate Party ( Smt Savita Jindal) 14,486 28.139

Interest income from Subsidiary, Associate & Other related party 17,333,989 4429222

NOTE - 15 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES NOT ACCOUNTED FOR

Income Tay, Demand under Appeal

AY.2009-2010 F.Y. 2008-2008 453,410 453 410

AY 2010-2011 F.¥ 2009-2010 7,480 7 480

AY. 2011-2012 FY 2010-2011 34,016,030 34.016.030

AY 2012-2013 F.Y 2011-2012 23,142 590 23.142.580

AY 2013-2014 F Y 2012-2013 380,280 -
57,999,790 57.619,510

Less - Tax Deposited 18,834,116 -

Net Unpaid Amount (A Y- 2009-10, 2010-11, 2011-12. 2012- 13

& 2013-14) 39,165,674 57 619,510

In respect of Bank Guarantee issued by indusind Bank Limited

(previously by Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited jin 13,684,350 13.684 350

favour of New Town Eiectric Supply Company Limiteg
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

SERVICE TAX LIABILITY

SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

The Company has not provided for its Service Tax liability on "Renting of Immovable Property” to some tenants for the period from
October. 2010 to September, 2011 amounting to Rs. 76,35,432/- which has been disputed by these tenants through their association
before Honb'le Supreme Court, of which 50% of the arrear dues amounting to Rs. 38,17 716/- has been directly deposited by these
tenants with the Service Tax Authority under the direction from the Apex Court and for the balance 50% of Service Tax dues, the final
adjudication of the Apex Court is awaited The Company, however, holds written commitment from such tenants for reimbursement of all
liabilities arising due to non-payment of Service Tax by the Company

NOTE:- 16 NOTES ON CAPITAL ADVANCE

Capital Advances of Rs.110,625,995/- (Previous Year Rs. 119,828,187/-) under Note no. - 8 represent advances made to various parties
{Local/Agricultarilist) for purchases of various plots of land at different locations in the state of Maharashtra on behalf of the Company for
investment purpose. Although the company helds original title deeds in respect of all such land purchased by these parties & taken
possession of the land properties, the final conveyance infavour of company is pending due to restrictions imposed by the local authorities.
Suitable appropriation of such capital advances would be made upon execution of conveyance deeds/settlement of accounts with all these

parties upon disposal of the same

NOTE:- 17 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company has this year identified two reportable primary Business Segment on the basis of risk & return involved. which are financing

& Investment and Renting of Property.

Segment Revenue Results & other information

Rupees (in lac)

Finance & Renting of
Particulars Invesiment Property Others Tota!
Income from operations 69,656,913 - - 69,656,913
(51,443,596) {-) {-) {51,443,596)
Other operating Income - 129,145,572 - 128,145,572
() {(126,776,954) () (126,776,954)
Segment Results 69,656,913 129,145,572 - 198,802,485
{51,443,596) {126,776,954) () (178,220,550}
Finance cost 9,086,821 - - 9,086,821
{124,132 {(1,139), () (125,271}
Qther expenditure 6,114,524 25,043,387 - 31,157,911
(6,463,745 (26,743,573) (-} (33,207.318)
Profit / (Loss) before Tax 54,455,568 104,102,185 - 158,557,753
(44 905,564) (100,032,242) - (144 887,961)
Segment Assets 2,361,167,733 775,407,480 - 3,136,575,213
{2,200,444.792) (781,324,082) (-} {2,981,768,874)
Segment Liability 796,596,322 57,802,563 - 854,398,885
{601,136,648) (57,802,563) (-) {658,939,211)
Capital employed 1,564,571,411 717,604 917 - 2,282,176,328

(1,599,308 144

(723,521,519)

(2,322,829,663)

Ch




SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

NOTE - 18 RESERVE BANK OF INDIA REGISTERED NON BANKING FINANCE COMPANY

The company is registerd with Reserve Bank of India as Non Banking Finance Company Vide Registration
No - 0.5.02275 dtd 16.05.1998 and has been complying with prudential Norms prescribed by RBI.

Additional particulars as required in terms of paragraph 13 of Non Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial
(Non-Deposit Accepting or Hoiding Companies) Prudential Norms (Reserve bank) Directions, 2015 sepretaly
attched as Annexure - 1.

NOTE - 19

In terms of provisions contained under Section - 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has constituted a
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. The primary function of the committee is to assisst the Board
of Directors in formulating 8 CSR policy and review the implemantation and progress of the same from time to
time. Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year was Rs 24,15,000/-. The expenses
incurred towards CSR activities during this year amounting to Rs. 10,00,000/- has been charged to the Statement
of Profit & Loss.

NOTE - 20 MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION PAID DURING THE YEAR

Details of Managerial Remuneration
Salaries & Allowances 967,488 731.849

NOTE - 21
Previous yrears figures have been regrouped / rearranged where ever necessary.

The Accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For KHANDE| WAL PRAJAPATI & CO, For & on Behalf of the Beard

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 313154E

V.N Khandelwal M.R. Garg Savita Jindal
Partner Whole-time Director Director
Membership No. 52862 DIN - 00449709 DiIN - 00449740

Place Kolkata
Dated 30-05-2016 Rajesh Gupta Arup Kumar Mitra
Company Secretary CFO
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INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT TO THE MEMBERS

OF
M/5. SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial Stalements

. W have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statememis of Mfis. SUDHA
APPARELS LIMITED (hereinafter refermed 1o as “the holding Company®y and its subsidiarny
(the Flodding Company and s subsidiany together referred wo as “the Group™) and it associate
comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31" March, 216, the Consolidated
Staternent of Profit and Loss, e Conselidaled Cash Flow Staternent for the sear then ended,
and o summary of the significant accounting polickes and viber cxplanatory information
(hereinmalter relemed o as “the consolidated Hoancial stawements '),

Management's Responsibility for the consolidated Financial Statements

2. The Holding Company’s Board of [Directors s responsible for the preparation of these
vonsolidated financial statements in terms of the roquirements of the Companies Act, 2013
(hereinafer refermed to as the Acr™) that give a tnie and fair view of the consolidated finameial
pasition. consolidzted linancial performance and consolidated cash Nows of 1he Group including
its amsociate in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepied in India, ineluding
the Accounting Standards spevified under Section 133 af the Act, read with Rule 7 of ihe
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, The respective Board of Dincctgrs of the Companies
ingleded i the Group and of il asspciale ave responsible e mamtenanees of adegquale
gecounting records inogecerdance with the previsions of the Ao Tor safeguarding the assets of
the Group and Tor preventing sod detecting framds and other irregularitivs, the selection and
application of appropriale accounting palicies. making judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent and the design, inplementation and maintenance of adeguate internal
financial conteols, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuricy and completeness of
the agoountmg records, relevant to the preparation and presertation of the financial slatements
thart give i tree angd fair view aod aee fee from material misstatement, whetbier due o Taod er
error, which bave been wied for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
slatements by the Directors of the Holding Cormpany, as aforesaid.

Auditor's Responsibility

3. Owr responsibility i% (o express an opinion on these consolidated tinancial statements based on
our audi,
While conducting the audit, we have taken inlo account the provisions of the Act, Lhe
accounting and apditing standards and matters which are required 1o e ineluded in the audit
reparnt under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

d. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specilied under Section
143010} of the Act. Those Siandards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the awdit (o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consalidated Ninancial
stanements are frew Tromn material imisstatement.

Cont......2
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
dizclosures in the Censelidared financial staements. The procedures selugied depend on the
audilors judgement, including the assessment of the fisks of malerial misstalement of the
comsalidated financial statements, whether doe o fraud or error. Iy miaking those risk
assessments, the aodilor considers intermal financial camtral relevant o the Holding Cumpany™s
preparation of the consolidated {mancial statement that give 1noe and fuir view in order 1o design
audit provedures thitt are approptiate in the circumstinecs. An audit also includes evithaating the
appropriateness of the sccounfing policics used and Ihe reasonableness of the acounting
estimales made by the Holding Company's Beard of Dircctors, as wel| o evaluating the cverall
presentalion of the convolidated fimancial stalcments.

b, W¢ believe that the audit evidenee obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the order
auditors in temns of their reports refermed 1o in other manters paragraph helow, s sutficient and
appropriate t provide o basis for our audit opinion oo the consalidaed fimancial starenenis.

Opinion

T Tnour opinion and o the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given 1o us,
the aforesaid consolidated financial stateinents give the informatien required by the Actin the
manner sa required and give a reve and fuir view in conformity with the accounting principhes
generally accepted in lndia. of the consolidated stutes of affairs of the Crraup and its associate as
at 317 March, 2016, and their consolidatsd profit and their consolidated cash Mows for the yoar
ended on thal date,

OTHER MATTER

B W did nut audit the financial stalements of the Associate Company in wiich the share of Lass
of the Group up 1o 31.03.2M6 is Bs.7 33,1 73/-. These Mnancial statcments have been audited by
Other quditors whose reparts have been furnished tw us by the management and our opinian on
the vonsolidated Financial Staements, in so far as it relates w the amount and disclosures
included in respecs of the Associate company is based salely un the repont of other auditors.

9. Our opition oo the consolidited fioancial starements and our report on (Other Lepal and

Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with resprect te
our relianee om the work done and the repons of the other auditor.

1(. Report on other Legal und Repulatory Requirements.
11, As required by Section |43(3 jaf the Act, we repon. to the extent applicable, that .
al We have sought and obtained all the jnformation and explanations which to the best of our

knvwledpe und beliet were necessary for the purpose of our audit ot the aforesaid consalidatad
financial stalements.

Cont.....J0
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ad o
bl o vwr opinien. proper books of aceounts us required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consobdared Tinancial statements have been kept so far as it appesrs from our
examinalion of ihose beoks and the report of the arher auditors.

¢l The Consohdzied Balance Sheet. the comsolidated Starement of Profir and Loss, and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Staterment deall with by this Feport are in ageeement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of prepamation of the consolidated finanel
SlaleTRENTS.,

d) In cur opinion, the sloresaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting

Srandards specitiad under Section 133 of the Ak read with Rule 7 ol the Companies {Acsounts)
Rules, 2014,

ed On the basis of the written representations received from the dircctors of Lthe Holding Company
and its subsidiary company as on 31" March, 216 taken on record by the respective Board of
Directors of these Companies and the reports of the statulory audilors of it3 associawe company
nene o the directors of the Group companies and its associate company is disqualified as on 317
March. 2016 from being appeinted as a directar in terms of Section 16402 ) of the Act,

fY With respect to the adequacy of the imemal financizl contrals over financial reporting of the
Liroup and jts associates and the operaling elfectiveness of such controls, refer W our separate
FEpRO T Tt ABRE LU — A",

£} With respect 1o the ather mutiers 1o be included in the Auditor's Ropon in accordanes with Rule

LI of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in aur opinion and to the beat of our

information and according o the explanations given to us

i) The Consalidated tinancial siatements disclose the impact of pending Htigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group and its asseciates in accordance with the
generally accepied accounfing practice - {refer Note L5 o the consolidated financial
statements ).

i} Provision amounting o Rs 905,124,623/ ax on 31" March, 2016 has been ntade in the
consolidated tinancial siatements, as requircd under the applicable laws or accounting
standards, for material foreseeabls 10sses, on long term contracts including derivalive
contracts.

iii} There has been e amounis requined to be transierred, to the [nvestor Education and
Protestion Fund by the Holding Company, 5 subsidiary company and associale
company a5 on 31™ March, 2016,

For KIHANDELWAL PRAJAPATI & CO.
Chartered Accountants,
Firm Registrafion No. 3131584E
PLACE : KINLKATA

DATED : 352016
(V. N. KHANDELWAL)
Fartoer
Membership No. - 052862
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KHANDELWAL PRAJAPATI & CO. ¥, Gvanesh Chandra Avenpe

Chartered Accouniants 5* Floor, Room No. 33
Kalkata — 700 U153

C/‘\ ‘ Phone — 2236 — 4634
2234 - 5110
E-muil — kpcaco(@igmail.com

Anncxure A Ly the Auditors Kepart

Feport on the Joiernul Finsnaelal Conirals under Clavse (i) of Subseclian 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Acl, 2313,

T eowjunediom w itk onar agelit of the onsobidated Ananeial stademends ot the oompans a5 of snd o 1he yvear ended
Pelanchs &1 2008, v bizve aodited e inemial linaneiol eontrols over Gimaeial reperling of Sudha Appareds Limiwed
thereinalier refered by as “the Holding £ ompany ™y and s subsidiary (the Tlolding Compans and ity subsidiary
topvther felerred te us “the Group™ and s associate incorporated in India . as of that dite,

klanagement's Responaibility for [uternal Flosncinl Controks.

The eespectine Board of Direcwors of the Holding Company, its subsidiars and its associare all wmcomovarad in
loudia. are responsible fer cstablishing and meinlaining inwemal Geangial contrals based on the internal conteel over
Bnancid| reporting criteria established ny these sntides, considering the gssential compooents of intermal oot
stated in the Guidonee Mo on Awdit of Internal Financlal Controls Over Fiewiol Reporting issued by the
Instiwnce of Chartered Aconumants of Imdic These responsibiliGes inelode the design,  imphemenction aml
mainance of sleguade interpal financial conrals that were operaling eftestively for ensuring, e orderly and
cificient vonuuet ity business, o luding adbarence o the Company s policics. b safepuarding of (s asses, the
preventon amd detection of drmuds und emors, the accucscy  and omipieteness of the accowaming reoords, and the
timuly preparation of relistle finuncial infemution, 2 required onder tue Companies Ao 2003 {4 the Act™).

Auditor’s Respon sibility

Cwe respobsibility is o oepress an apmem on the Helding Company’s imemal Ginanciab commls over fnarcial
repering bused an vor audit. We comdoeted vur audil in aecordance with the Guidanee Mok on Awdit of [nterpal
Fimancial Contruls Cver Finarcial Heporting (the Guidance Sote™y and the Standards on Auditing as specitiel
wnder setion 1431010 of the Act b the exient applicable oo sudit of inkeretal Tmancial sobwals, bod Lpplicable
oy an audit wf Intermal Finsneiod Conteals and, bvab issued By e Instituee of Charered Acsouaniants ull India. Those
Standareds wmd the Guidanee Bote rguine thal we gonipls with ethizal requiroments and plan and per form the audit
w obin reasonable assurance ubout whether mlequade nemad Dnancil conties over fiancal repoding was
pitablished and mainteined sd i7such controls operatod effeotively in all material respocis.

Cher sudit Invelves pertarming procedures to oblain audit evidence abou the adoquaey of the irtomal financial
cunlrels sastem ower [nancial reperting and their vperating elfecliveness, Cur sadit of inlemal Ninancial controls
over financial reponing included ahtaining an undersionding ol intemal firuncial oontrels aver financial roporting,
anpensing he risk thal 2 materia] weahness exists, and teding and evaluating the Jesign and operating ¢ Mecteness
ot tnlorpal contrn] basgd on the assesed sk, The procedures seloced depend on the woditor’s judgoment,
iancTading the assessmaent o the risks of materid misstutement of the conaslidas] Tnoneiol staamends, whether due
to Trad or efror,

We heliove thal the sudil esidence we have ohtzined 6 sufficient and appropriate g provide 2 basis e our adn
opinon oh the Growp's ond its asseciales, incorported in India, internol fimancial sontral system ovis financial
Teporting.

Meaning af lnternal Financial Conirels Over Financial Kepariing.

A Compuny's intemal financial contral over financial reponting is a process designed o provide reasonable
sssurance regarding the reliability of fimingiyl reporling and te preparaian o financial stacmenis for extomal
purperics in wecordunce with generally sccepled accounting principles, A Company™s inrernal Gnancal eontrol over
linancial reporting includes those policies and procedurss that {1 pectain t the maimenance of records tat. In
teasoruble detail, accuratels and falrly retlect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company. (23
providke resesonable apsurance il ransactions are reoorded as mecessary oo permit preparation ot financial
sLatemients in aceordance with generally aeoepiod wocounting principles, and that receipls and exponditores of the
Conmpany ace Teing made only in accordance with suthorizations of management and Jirectors of the company and
131 pes i reasonable assurance regarding prevention ve dmely detesction ol wnaaberizesd woquisition, use. or
disprsition ul the company' s assers thal could has ¢ 2 material effeet on the linancial sttements.

Comd. ..
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KHANDELWAL PRAJAPATI & CO. 8, Gaoesh Chandra Avenue

Chartered Accounitanis 5 Floor, Room No. 33
K sikata — 700 013

(-A ‘ Phone — 2236 — 4634
2134 = 5119
E-mail - kpeacoi@gmailcom

Inherent Limilatipns of Inferoal Finaocis] Cootrols Over Finaocial Beporting.

Brcuuse vt e inherent limitations of imarnal financinl eonmcds over financial reporting including the possinility wf
cullusicn or imprsper manweenent override of conrals, marerial mistatemens due o amor oe freod may oeeur and
ol ke detected, Alsn projoctions of any evaloation of the inamal Brancizl oonimnls over financial reponing o
future perinds are subject to the risk thal the inbemal tinancil conirol over financial reporting may begpme
inacdequate becuwse of changes in asnditions or thal the degree of comp ianes with the policies or procedurss may
deneriorale,

Opien

in wur upinion, K the Bt ol voer ifoermtion and deoetding W the explandtiates givet wos e Telding Caormpay,
i subsidiaries and its aesociates which are incomorate in India. hasvc. in all material respests, an adequate inrernal
Npapsial euntrals sy3em oy o Mnancial reporting and sueh intemal financial conirals aver Ananciol repoling were
operating effoctively ax ut March, 31 2016, based on the inlernal canbro] over tinancial reparting oritera established
by these entitics. considefing the esential comporents of laterenl control stated in the Guidanse Now on Audit of
Imemal Finaneial Commds Over Financial Reponing issied by the Insiitute of Charered Accountants of India.

Other Matiers

Cur abfsresaid reports under section 1430331 of the Act on the adequasy amd operaling effeciveness of the intermol
finaneial conbrols ws gr Anncial reporting in 5o fr as i relates o the associate is based on the comespaonding repon
of the auditor of such Compans.,

For KHANDELWAL PRAJAPATI & CO.
PLACE : KOLKATA Chartered Acoountants.
Firm Registration No. 315 154F
DATED: 30/52016

{(V.N. KHANDELWAL)
Pariner
Membership No. - 052862
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SUDHA APPASELS LIMITELD
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH, 2016

NOTES Az Al As AL
Parilgulars M.032016 3032015
Rupeeas Fupees
EGQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital 2 1.27T0,120 T EFQRG
Mingrity Interesl (77,166,497} (350 383)
Reserves and Surplus 3 2,008,647 420 2.193.680.483

{938 767,043 2.200670.22D
Mon-Current Llabillfies 4
Ciher Long Term Liabilities

Others - Security Deposits 4.1 57,802,563 37,802 583
Long- Term Provigicns 432 1,745, 762 qB& 702
59 048 325 BH THY 265
Currant |_[abllities - Unagcured 2
Short - Term Borrowings 51 826,556,521 GAs 130727
Diher Surranl Liabibites 52 B 094 5OF 3,360 423
Short-Tem Provisigns 8.3 915,704 945 A77.B08 042
Total Cument Liatulities 1,7560,356,073 1.2250C8 192
Total Equity & Llabilitles 3,748,166,441 484 408677
ASSETS
Mon- Current Assets
i. Filxed Assals - Tangible Axsets
- Fixed assels B B48,520,004 B70,268, 730
il. Mon-Currant Invastrmants 7 1,984.5326.T1 1,044 587, 211
ili. Lang Term Loans & Advances ) 11,284,945 120,487 137
2,844,741 680 2935 31531108
Gurrgni Assale 8
Inventonies 81 - 29 549 988
Trade Recevable 9.2 43,564,104 24,457 114
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8.3 2,074,456 10768618
Shont-Term Loans and Advances 9.4 BE4 376,183 4973 B6H 544
Olher Current Assels 4.5 1370148
903,413,761 £q4 055,584
Total Assats 3,748,166 441 3,464 4D8 EFT

Surnmary of Significant Accounting Policies followed by the Company is given in Notes -1
The Accompanying Nales are an Integral Part of Financial Staterment

&5 per our report of even date attachad
For KHAMDELWAL PRAJAFATI & CO. For & on Behalf of the Board

Chartered ACcounrants
Firrn Regietration Mo. 313154E

W N Khandelwal M.R. Garg Sawila ingal
FParner Whaole-time Qirector Director
Membarship Mo, 52882 DN - QQ44070% CHK - 0445740

Placa | Kolkata
Dated : 30-05-2015 Rajpesh Gupta Arup Kumar Mira
E 3 Company Secrelary CFO



SUDHA AFPARELS LIMITED

CONSCLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LDSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2016

Particulars NOTES Year ended Year ended
31.03.201E 2103 2015
Rupees Rupees
INCOME
Revenue from QOperalions 10 208 547,788 180.709, 285
Other Income 10 129,793,572 137 424 £54
338,441,360 208,134 243
EXPENDITURE
Purchase of Stock tn Trade 11 112,300,000 107 800,000
BecreasedIncreasea) in Stock in Trade 11 29,649 938 17,857 937
Empleyess Benelit Expeses 11 3,454,852 1564 202
Finance Cost 11 42 375,198 43054 035
Depreciation £ Amartization é 26,303 488 FRUYZ O
CHher Expenses 11 2456,937 2,386 235
Conlingent Provision against Standard Assels o 308,593 782,300
216,787,739 203 445 880
Probt ! (Loss) kefore exgeplional extraordinary ilems and tax 121,653,621 104 567 353
Excaptional Hems
Provision for Dimingon in value of investrment 330,320,239 483,797 627
Minority Interest |76,816 114) (69.971 891}
Share of Prafit f (Loss) in Associated Enterprises 733,153 374 510
Provision for Man Performing Assels 7,567,068 (20677 Ba3)
Profit ! [Loss) atter exceptional and extragrdivary items and bekors Llax (140,1%0,726) (288 535 530Y
Tax Expenge - Currgnt Tax 45,000,000 41,000,000
Frofil { {Loss) from Continuing Operation {186,150, 7 26) {329.835.530)
Earning Per Share {Basici Diluted) (288 .04} (453 65}

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies [allcwed By \he campany i5 given in Notas -1

The Accompanying Motes are an Inteqral Part of Financial Staternent.
As per our report of even date altached
For KHANDELWAL FRAJAPATI & CO.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo, 3137134E

Y.ML Khamdeliwal
Partner
Membership No. 52862

Place : Kolkala
Dated . 30-05-20116

Y

For & on Behalfl of the Board

M.R. Garg

Whola-time Crrector
CHM - 2044870%

Rajesh Gupta
Company Secretary

Savita Jindal
Crirector

DN - 00448740

Arup Kumar Mira

CFO



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT ANNEXED TQ THE BALANCE SHEET

SUDHA APFARELS LIMITED

FCOR THE YEAR ENDED M5T MARCH 2018

A,

=3

C.

Cash Flow from Opcerating Actlvitiog

Mat Praofit bofore lax and exiracrdinary itoms
Adjusted for:

Dapraciaticn

Contingent Provision Ior Standard Assets

Gperating Frofit before Warking Capital Changas
Adjustad for:

Trade & Olher Receivables

IMvenlories

Trade Fayablas & Othars

Lash Generatad from operations
Direcl taxes Paid

Cash Flow belora axtraordinary itoms
Exlzazrdinary item

Met Cash From Qperating Activities

- ash Flow from Invesfing Activities
Purchase of Fixad Assais

Purchase of Invesiments
Met Cash frorm Investing Activities

Caahb Flow from Financing Act|vities
Froceeds f (Reduction) of Shord Term Borrowings

Met Cash from Financing Activities

Meat increase in Gash & GCash Equivalanis (A+B+G)

Opaning Balances of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Clceing Halances of Cash and Cash Egquivalents
Change in Cash and Cash Equivalenis

g par oyr report of gven dale afached

For KHAMDELWYAL PRAJAPAT| & GO,
Chartered Accouniants
Furm Registralion Mo 313154E

WM. Khandeiwal
Partner
Membership Mo, 52862

Flace : Kolkata
Daled . 30-03-2016

65

Yoar Ended Year Ended
31.03.2018 31 320s
Rs, Rs
121 6531621 104 BET 357
26,300 468 27892 O
308,595 7o 3040
148,265,584 33,471,754
(158,691,532} [0 ATE 982
24,6549 938 17 BL7. 237
4,964,144 §233. 217 356
24,008,284 [&2, 464,667)
{54,751,704) (57.244 177)
{30.743.420) {145 70B 635)
[20,74.3,420) {148 708835}
(4,554,722} i2.553.014)
39,985, 000) 5,161,108}
44,519, T22) 8.7 4 122
76,258,930 153,458 105
T 76,258,980 159,408 105
995,818 (4 D24 BSA)
1,076,618 6,003,474
2074 456 1,078,614
995,825 (4.8924,8556)

For & on bahalF of tha Board

M R. Gaig
Whole-time Director
DIN - 0448704

Fajesh Gupla
Company Secretary

Sawla andal

Cwector

G - GD449740

Arup Kumar Mitra

CFO



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES ON CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

A. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANC AL STATEMENTS

These consglidated financial statement: have been prepared to comply with the Generally Acceptad
Accounting Principles in India (indian GAAP]ncluding the Accoonting Standards notified undar the
relevant provisions of the companies act . 2013

8. PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consalidated financial staterments relate to SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED (“the company™] and its
subsidiary company and associate. The consolidated financial staternents have been prepared on the
following basis.

a}l The financial staterments of the company and its subsidiary company are combined on 3 line by line
basis by addirg together the book values of like items of assets |, liabilities, income and expenses | after
Fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions in accordance with Accounting
Standard{AS) 21-"consolidated financial Statement”

b} The difference betweren the cost of investment in the subsidiaries, over the net assets at the time of
acquisition of shares in the subsidiaries is recognized in the financtal statements as Goodwill or Capital
Reserve, as the case may be.

c} The difference between the praceeds disposal ol investment in subsidiaries and the carrying amoont
of its assets [ess liabilities as of the date of disposal is recognized in the conscolidated profit and loss

staterment being the profit or [oss on disposal of investment inosubsidiary.

o} Minarity interest’s share of net prolit of conselidated subsidiary is identified and adjusted against the
incomee of the proup in order 0 arrive at the net in¢ome attributable to sharehotders of the company.

2] Mingrity interest’s share of net assats of consolidated subsidiary is identified and presented in the
conselidated balance sheet separate from liabilities and the equity of the company’s sharehalders,

f} investment in Associate companies has been accounted under the equity method as per Accounting
standard {As) 23-"Accounting far investment in associates in consolidated financial skatements”,

gl The company accaunks for its share of post acquisition changes 1n net asseis of associates, after
etimingting unrealized profits and losses resulting from transactions between the company and its
associates to the extent of its sharg, through its consolidated profit and loss staterment, to the extent
such change is attributable to the associates ‘profit and loss statement and through its reserves for the
kalance based on available information.

h} The dillerence between the cost of investment in the associates and its share of net assats al the hme
of acquisition of shares in the assonates is identified in 1he financial statement as Goodwill or capital
Reserve as the case may be.

L6



il As far as possible, the consolidated financial statement are prepared using unitarm accounting poticies
for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are preseated in the SBme mannear 35
the company’s separate financial statements.

€. Investments other then in subsidiaries and associates have been accounted as per ACCounting
Standard [AS] 13 an "Accounting far Investment”™.

D. Cther significant accounting policies

These are set out under “sipnificant Accounting policies” as given in the company's separzte
standalane financial statement.

G+



SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED NOTES DN ACCOUNTS FORMIMNG PART QF THE AURITEDR FINANCIAL STATEMENT FGR

THE ¥EAR EMDED 31 £T MARCH, 2{HE

TES - ¢ EHA P
Aw At As Al
11.03.2018 310325
Rupaes RupEEs
Authorjaed
1,000 0% Equily shares of Ag 10 each 10,0041, 000 10,008,000
10,000 000 10008 Dk}
Ipgvad, Submeribed and Panl up
j ilal
T27.012 Equity Shares af Re. 10 sach fully pasd up ¥ 20120 TETO1M
7470120 7270110

#) Ofthe above Shares 527,012 Equity Shares warg allolied a5 fully paid up
pursiant i schema of amalgamation witheul paypment being receivad in cash

by Reconcilaton of Shares Cuislanding at the beginnging and and of kg year
SHARE CAPITAL

Equity 3haras of B3 10 sach fully paid wp

Prrticulars As al 31 03 2018 AL al 31.03 2015

Miag Rupens Mes, Rupess
At the beqginning al Yaar T2 m2 T2T0 X 727 012 7270120
A0 - Addiban during e Yesr - - - -
Loss - Feduction during e Vear . . - -
Al the and of the Year 727012 ¥ A7 120 727,012 Faro 120

21 Equity sharas hoklers hava right to receive dividend proposed by tha Board of Dirgclors, subject to

approval by shareholders al tha Ganeral Measblng.

d} Equsty shareholders nave no right 1o repaymeant of capital except, digtribution of aurplus assets on boudation

2} Ligt of pereans hakding mare han 5t equity shares of Ra 10/- pach of the Company

Name of Shara-Hopldars Ax at 311.03 2016 Ag at 31 43 2015
[ [} ] o MNos h

1. Jindal Globhal Finance & Invesimeant Lid . 107 418 0.00 117 418 14 77
2. Flari Dealcom Lid. 38 761 0.0 35 YB1 4 52
3 Fushpangali Invesirgde P Lid 70 000 Q00 70 000 8463
d Dharam Pal indai 3 500 00 5o 00 461
& Savita Jindal 105 R W] 11 BAZ 14 &7
6. Saket Jindal 70000 00 T L0 83
7. Raghav Jindal 145,123 O o} 145123 19 95

NS
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32

3.3

4.1

4.2

SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financlal Statamenis

NOTES - 3. RESERVE & SURPLUS

Particularg

Caplial Reserve
A3 pev last Balance Sheet
Cin Agcount of Cosoldatian

Other Resanvos
a) General Reserve

Ag per last Balance Sheet
Add - Agd:tion duning e yedf

b) Statutory Reserve
Az per [ast Balanca Sheet
Add - Adddian during 'he year

Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss Alc

A% par last Balsnses sheet

Proli during the Year

Less - Profil ¢ {Loss) of Subsidary

Lesgs - Transier (o Gengral RESEIVE
Curgnl Year Surpus

Clozing Surplusf{Deficil)

Total

NOTEE - 4 ; NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES

Diher Long Term Liabilities
Srcunly Jeposil

Long- Term Previsions
For Emnployees Benefits

&4

As At b At
HAL36 S LR
Rupéns Rapeos

51,561,498 51 581.498
21,866,135 21 BGE 135
A2 746,597 &2 7af,55h7
2,746,597 A7 748 5GT
482,108 8549 4B2 108 558
432 108,855 a4&7 105 859

1,555 167,194
(36, 724,025}

(148,349.034)

t BB3 480,197
{326 835510

(B25F 273

[185,043,060)

(374,002 807

{185.043,083)

1328,092 303

1,376,344, 371

1,556, 387 394

2,008,647,420

Z 19% 630 483 _

57,802,583 57 502,563
1,245,762 686,702
59.048,125 5B 768 255




g1

8.2

53
5.34

3.3B

5.AC

SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

MNotas forming part of the Finenglal Statements

NOTES - 5 . CURRENT LIASILITIES

Short -Term Borrowings [ Unsecurad §
Frarm Bodies Cotperate Repayable &n Demand

Othar Current Liahilities
Liakilities for Expanses
Liabilities far Slalutery Ooes
Ligbili{es for Olher Finance:

Short Term Provisions

Contingent Provision for S1andared Assets
Crpeeing Balance

Addition ¢ [Adjusted) during the yaar

Prowson for Diminutiae i walue of Imeesiment
Addition ! {Adjusied) during 1ne year

The above pravision |5 made @ 0 . 25% of Slandard Assels an the reperling date a5 per REI

Nobfication Mo. DNBS 222/CGM(US) -201 1 dated 17th Janaary 2011,

Prawvisiah for Non Performing Assels
Adddition § (adusted) dunng the year

Ag AL A Al
103116 310315
Rupaos Rupees

475 566 621 B4 130,727
2.574,700 f3° 658
o917, 207 2313
4 502,600 2 714 836
2,094,507 3 265,423
1,889,842 1 207,542
308,595 T A0
2305437 4 %80 542
&74,804,394 21.006.757
330,320,239 483 797 G27
905124 623 574 804 384
V04,816 21 3AZ 460
7,587,069 {20 B77.653)
8,271 BEE 704,86
915,704 845 577 503 J42

Total Cusrent Liabilities

7,750,356,07 3

1.225,009,152
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SULHA APFAHELSLIMICED

Mol Fermrning part of the Financ|al Stetementa

Az At 31.03.2018 As A3 032015
-7 . T Humbars Rupay Murmbrs Aupsas

(Fully pad up unless cthenvise spasifmd]

HOH - TRADE

In hpsus |ated SRiMEprisgs

Cost of Azguisition of 1125000 Equdy Shares of Re 10 each of Kustagra Infra 36,050,450 35 D8 S50

Add FiLess? Group Shara of Prafit or [Loes) (73163 aTE R

I Qugted

Eguity 3hares

P 5 eacn of Jingal Drilling & Industras Limitad 1372200 1,205,119,735 9,533.850 1365 139,725
Ra. 10 gach of Harvarna Caphin Limited 1018053 43,606,316 1.076.059 43 605 316
3. 10 epch of Parsvneth Devalopars Limsed 1,000 48 B2T 100a AL BET
Fs 10 gacr af Videacan 1ndusties Limiled 100 17441 104 14 841
Rs 10 each of Elacirogieer Steels Limied 9164 Ra2 8T 21 656 9.164 a2 57 821 656
Rs 10 each of GOL Cffghome Limited 1,500 622,755 1.506 522 TEE
Rs 10 essh of Lttam valus Sceal Linnded 5H, 4 65 552 05,8949 965 552
Rs 10 esch of Mannet 15pal & Energy Limited E10,483 347,71 Tas 18483 347 721 146
Rs 5 each of Welspun Corposation Limited 800 164, 3564 2.800 184 364
Fis 2 epch of Abgn Offghore Limiled 100 AT 332 130 47 233
Rs 10 each of Hindustan Cul Explaration Co Linideq 2,000 470, TBE 2.000 470. 7RG
Rs 10 each of Selgn Exploraticn Tecnokogy Leted 4,100 435,456 1.100 41% 455
Ha. 1 pach of hndal Siesl & Powar Limitad 18 486 54873 54 18 468 9 873 B4h
Ra 10 each af SWOHGL Qil Gas And Ensriy Lirited 1,504 Al 728 1,500 EDd T2R
RBs. 10 mach of Hazs Tradex Lirmited 2800 95,156 2500 ERE
Rs 10 esch af IB| Bank Lim{ed 3.000 150,085 3004 b8 025
R4, 7 oach of J.ndal Saw Limited & 000 TEA, B30 B0Q0d 758 630
Ra. 1 eagh gf MMDC Limied 1,182,841 1177 Bd1 5000 1,177 B4
Rs. 10 @ach of Chl Ingha Lenited ars 444,373 HL 465 1M
Fs 1each of Vedanta Limiced M) 82,081 300 B2 Ch
As 10 each of yyelspun Enjerpnges Limited 1,680 3,502 140 231503
Rs % each ol ISMT Lirruted 10 46 ]t] 454
Rs 10 each of J5W Stesl Limiled 1 1,111 1 111

] Un - Qucted

al  Equity Sharey
Fs. 10 wach of Crishpark vincom Limuled &1 804 .
Rs 10 epch of Dytop Commodeal Linsited 85,700 861 240 B5 700 4G5 2ad
Rs 10 wach of Jinda| Global Fingnoe & Investment Limi TOO. 103 2,748 505 70,104 2.74AE ROR
Pa 10 each of Jindal Pipaa Lirted 5,381,740 A4 447 906 3741 7ag 44,247,900
Rs. 10 each of Sparlerk Cealcemm Limded E1, 0000 212,000 21,400 B12,000
Rs 10 each of Whibagin T -y Lirmleed &0,000 LR B0.00G BOS 00K
Rz 10 gach of Jimdal Pg=x Tubes Pvl Limited 200,000 1,000,008 200,330 2 100 00
Rs 10 aach af Jindal ExpRadnl| Lim ded 15,000 180,000 19 Do0 190 030
Rs 10 each of Neplune Budlech Pyl Limiled 8810 98 406 o 98,805
Rg 10 aach of Sigma Infrastructura Pyl Loriiad 98048 38416 O gan g 15
Fs 10 asch of Xushagea Infragiruciure Fut Limited 1,195,000 - 1 135 020 .
Ra 10 aach of Jaguar Internatienal Limited 198,000 1,581,000 194 030 125 0%
Ry 10 aach of JC0 Gas Pipe Lemilad 550,000 8,800, 0 250 010 B GO0, a0

bl Prefemence Sharge:
R+, 10 &ach of Gwba! ands) Finimees Limited 250,000 25 000,000 250.000 25 GO0, DD
Ra 10 each ol Cnshpark Vineam Lirited - - TR 00 R
As 10 each of hndal Glopal Fingnea & lnwggtment Limil 200,000 10,000,000 200030 10.000,000

gl Bonds
Indien Ralway Finance Corporation Limitad 26,000 25,066,000
Power Finance Corporatian Limited 50 54 910,000

£l NCD'S
Anlarchica Properties Co. Limibad . - L] 490, 0Q0 QLA

1,984 926,711 1,944 07 3210

Aggregate Value of Laguorted Invesiments J55,080,944 1FY 5487 414

Aggregate Value of Quaoted Inveatmers 1,850, 854,807 1770683 BOT

Market Walue ol Craated Imeazimants 1,504,500,526 2735% 280 42

MNotes

All investment i shares of Private Limited Companies are subject 1a restnctions on iar shar of shargs as contamed ntre

Armiclas of Assorabon of raapactive company.

AN investment In Preferenca Shares ars aptianally converhble a9 por terms of isgue and redeermpale afler 3 yeers but bafor 7 yoars
from dave af akalman . Thase shares camny preferential nght of cumulative divdend £ 12% per annum frem date af allsimen;

~1 2
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SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

MNotes forming part of the Financial Statements

Az Al A AY
M1L2ME 032
Ruppas Rupees
NOQTE -8 : LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
{Unsecured, Considered guod)
Capital Advances 10,625 995 115,828, 187
Security Deposit BEE,950 GBS 930
11,264,945 120,497 137
NOTES -9 : CURRENT ASSETS
INVENTRRIES
Stock in Trade 249 F49 988
- 25 545 383
TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Ursecured, Coneidered good)
Chatstanding for a period exceeding sis manths - .
Cther Receivable 43,584 104 24,457 319
43,584,104 244457319
CASH AKD CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on hand 10,414 Tz dadz
Balances with Banks
= In Curran! Agoounts 2044 042 1,006, 135
7074,458 1078.618
SHORT TERM LOAMS AND ADVANCES
{Unsecured, Considered Good}
Lrans tn Bodies Corporates 723,054 316 FiModa1d
Other Short Term Advances 101,067 312 84 B85 203
Advance mcome Tax 30,251,955 21 802 251
(Net of Frowisuan B5 260,769,161/, Prewicus Year A5, 21317891614
Total Short-Term Loans & Advances BS54 378,183 488 35T 9357
OTHER CJRRENT ASSETS
Prepaid Expenzes 85,344 106.207
Interast Recenahle B28,629 £ 3685 480
Dividend Recewablz 2484525 .
3.379.018 5471 587
Tetal Current Assets 903,413,764 £48 A5 558

I tha opinian of Beard and to the begs of their knowledge and balkel | the value & feahisation of above curmert

assetz in ordnary course ol business would ngl He less than the amount 2t which they are staled

13
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10.2

1.4

11.5

SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

Motas farming part of the Financial Statements

TES - 10 : INCOME

EEYENUE FROM OGPERATIONS

Sala of Mutual Funo Linits
Quanitabve Datzils given separately

Doaderd - on Hon corant Inyvestment

Interest {TDS Rs 5§ 338 BGS- Previols Yaar Rs 4 244 428)-)

Prof on Transfer of Land {Mel)

Liabilities Wiethan Batk

Total Revanue Irom opergtons

DTHER INCOME

Rent {TDS Rs. 12,901,356/, Prévidus Yoar Rs 12,873 8071

Total ether Incoma
Total Income

MOTE - 17 EXPENSES

Furgh of by Tr.
[tern - Mutidal Fund Units

Hingraa In kIn Trad
[tamt « Mutual Fund Urits

Cpening Stock
Lazs - Cipsing Stock

DacisasedInctaase] in Stock n Trade

EMPLOYEES' MEFIT EXPEMSES
Salangs & Glter Allgwancos

Stafl Welfare Expanzes

INTEREST & FIWANCE COSETS

Interast on Lnsecured Short Term Loan
Bank Charges.

QOTHER EXPENSES

D P. Charges

Ran

Rates & Taxes

Postage & Telephona

Printing & Statonery

Fen & Subscription

Travelbng & Convayance
Repgic & Memntenange. Othars
Legal & Frofessional Charges
Insurance

CER Expensas

IMia gl Audit Fes
Advertisament & Publ.city
Apditors’ Remunaration

- Audit Fea

« Tax Audit Fee

- Qartihication / others sarvices
Miscallaneous Expanzes

Total

A At Yaar encod
31.03.2016 1032015
Rupess Rupees
143,276,728 127 344 Q6
21,199,461 11,544 141
41,095 358 41 A77 438
3.035.11 -
41,110
208,647, THE 180,740 7149
128,793,572 127,424 554
129,793 57¢ 127 A B
338,441 360 AE RS ETE
112,300,000 167 8030 .30
29,643,989 47 BLT 925
29,640 QBB
141,949 986 17857 B3F
1.410400 3516111
44 553 314
34548 953 2 564 202
42. 217934 a3 0831684
35880 22 2814
42 271798 43 105 465
5,056 4775
188,274 196 248
18,638 9 950
5B, 390 18 276
9,229 S 055
36,490 Jg o8
420,728 323287
169,459 281 252
130,478 146, B4
176,002 176 840
1,000,000 1,005 00
10,0 10 000
8,767 51 250
114,500 55103
6,840 £ 741
48,740 2827
69,173 b
2,496,937 2 IR6.325
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SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Stalemants Year anded Year croed
Mozime a1 03 zZ015
Rupees Rupels

NOTE: 12 - Eamning Per Shara
MNet Profit after Tax (188,150 T26) (328 835 5al)
Total Humber of Weighted Equily Shases Ta7 012 TATNZ
Earminyg Per Equity Share of Rs 18- each {256.05) (453 G4
MOTE : 12 - DEFERRED TAX ASSETSHLIABILITIE
Far WD of Fixed Assets 21,154 1490 *¥ BaC 135
Fer Exrenses Allgwable on Paymant 404 187 S0 3%
Unabscred Capital Losses 21,328,920 2332920
Deferred Tax Asset(Liabiity] on Balance Sheed Date 44 977 297 36439250
Less Qpening Bafance 36, 53% 250 27913 806
Clarrad Tax IncomeExpensa) for the yaar 5,388 047 AE23 444
In view of uncartainity of reaigaben | the above Deferred Tax AseeteIncome has not been recogrised in the
Finangial Siatemenis.
NOTE ; 14 - RELATED PARTY DISGLO3IRE
Related Parlies with whom Transactigng have taken place during the Year
Mamy of Fey Managéerial Paragan

Mr. ME Garg - Whaleurme Dradios

Mr Arap Kumar Mira - CFQ

Mr Raesh Gupta - Company Secretary
Cithar Ralated Party
Smt Savile Jindal
Azsociata Company
Kushagra lnfrastructure Pl Limiled
Trangge rln r
Fayment for OHher Services (o Related Farty
Asspoate Paty { S Sawvita Jindasn 10,555 0G5
Rant Pald 1o Raelaled Parties
Assooate Party | Smt. Savita Jindal) 195,000 195,000
Managerial Remuneration pald H87, 988 T3 B4y
Bafance Payable by the Company o Relatad Pary
Associale Party [ 3mt. Savita Jindall 14,485 29,139
Loan Faid to related party
Raximurm amownl involvad [ Keshdgralnfrastructure Pyt Limited) T.0432 158 T B19,957
HCTE - 15 CONTIN TLIABILITIES NOT & TEQ FOR
Dizpuigd Incoma Tax Demandg
AN 200u-2010 F.Y 2008200 q4%1 210 453410
AN 02001 FY 2008-2010 7,480 7 480
AN 0112012 F o 200-2011 34,016,030 34 018,030
AY XNZ-ZMaFY 2011-2012 73,142,550 23 142,550
AY Midz01aFY 2012-2013 380,230 -
Wet Unpad &mount [AY- 200810 201011,
201112, 2012- 13 & 2013-14) 57,999,740 57T R15.5S10
Less - Tax Deposi 18834118 -

35 165,674 ETE1R.310

I reapect of Bank Guarantes wsued by Indusing Bank Limled
previously ssued by Ketak Mahingdra Bank Limited in 13.684 350 13 B84 350

favaur of New Town Electng Supply Company Linnled

Pl



SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

Woles forming part of the Flnanclal Stalements

HOTE -1

The company 13 reqaterd with Reserse Bank of India a3 Men Banking Finproe Company Vide Reqstratan
Ma-0532275 did 16 05 1508 and has begr complying win prudenta Mo ms preschbed by RBI

Agditonal pariculars 83 required 17 /M3 of paragraph 13 of Non Systemicatly [mponarl Bon-Sgeeog Friaecigl ihes
Crepasit Accepting or Halding Campamas) Prodential Morms (Reserve bany) irecuons. 2015 sepretaly atichea as
Bnmearng - 1.

HOTE - 17 MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION FAID DURING THE YEAR

Dalails ol Manags nal Remgneralicn
Salanes & Allowances 36T 486 731,843

Frivigus yrears hgures have boen regrouped ! rearranged where gwar nagessany

The Agcompanying Heles fgrming an imegral par ¢f The Financial Slatements.

Az per our repart of even date anached

For KHANOFLWAL PRAJAPATIE CO. For £ an Bahalf of the Hoard

Chartered Accarniants
Firm Registration Mo, 313154E

Y M Khandelwal MR Garg Savita hindal
Partner Whale-time Crimector Chrectior
Marnbarship Mo 52862 DIN - DO448703 OHW - DO04483740

Flacs @ Kolkata
Dated  30405-2018 RAzesh Gupla Arup Kumar M tra
Campany Secralary Cfo

12



SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED
CIN: L1729:0WB 1681 FLCO33331
Feqistered Office: 2/5, Sarat Bose Road, Sukh Sagar,
Flat No.8A, 8" Floor, Kolkata-700 020, Phone: 033-30522053
Website, http:/Awww_sudhaapparels.com. | Email: secretanal@sudhaapparels.com

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that 38" Annual General Meeting of Sudha Apparels Limited will be held on
Frigay the 30" September, 2016 at 11,30 A M. at the Registered Office of the Company at 245,
Saial Buse Road, Sukh Sagar. Flal No.8A, 8 Filoor, Kolkata-700 020, to transact the following
business: -

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To consider and adopt the (a) Audited Financial Statamants for tha year ended 31% March,
2015 together with tha Reports of Directors and Auditors theraon and (2} the Audited
Consalidated Financial Statemnants for the year ended 31" March. 2016 together with the
Reparts of Auditors thareon and in this regard to pass tha following resoluton as ordinary
resclution(s):

fa} "RESQOLED THAT ihe Audited Financial Statemants of the Company for the financial
year ended 31* March, 20186 together with the Reports of Directors and Auditors thereon
be and are herehy considered and adopted.”

{b) "RESCLED THAT the Audited Consolidated Financial Statemants of the Company for
the financial year ended 31¥ March, 2016 togelher with tha Reports of Auditors thereon
be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

To appoint a Director in place of &mt. Savita Jindal, who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers herself for re-appointment and in this regard to pass the following resolution
as an ardinary resclution:

“RESOLED THAT Smt Savita Jindal {DIN 00440740}, who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers herself for re-appaintment be and is haraby re-appointad as Directar of the
Company.”

To appoint Audilors of the Campany and to fix their remunaration and in this regard 10 pass
the following resclution as an ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mfs. Khandelwval Prajapat and Co., Chanered Accountants [Firm
Registrations No, 313154E) be and are hereby appointed as Auditors of the Company to hold

office from the conclusion of this meeting until conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting at such remuneration as shall be fixed by the Board of Directars of the Company.”

By Order of the Board

Place: Gurgaon RAJESH GUPTA
Dated: 10™ August, 2018 Company Secretary

Tt



NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VYOTE AT THE MEETING 15

ENTITLED TO
APPOINT & PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND A PROXY NEED
NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.
Form of Proxy is separately annexed. The instrument of Proxy. in order {0 be effective must
be deposited at the registered office of the Company, nat less than 48 hours Lefore Lhe
commencement of the meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of companies/ bodies cerporate
must be supported by an appropnate resolution/autherity as applicable.

A person can act a5 a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding n
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Gempany carrying
votng nghts. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital camying
yoting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such persen shall not act as a proxy
for any other person and sharenolder.

Members/Proxies attending the meeting are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Repart
for reference al the meeling and also the Attendance Slip duly filed in for attending the
meeting.

Members desrrous of getting any information in respect of Accounts of the Company are
requested to send their queries in writing to the Company at its Registered Office 0 as to
reach at least 7 days befora the date of the meeting so thal the required information can be
made available at the meeting.

Detals of the Directer seeking appointmentfre-appointment at the forthceming Annual General
Meeting (Pursuant to Regulations 26{4) and 36(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) regulations, 2015)

" Mama of the Directar Smt. Savita Jindal o
Age 58 Years
| Qualification Graduate
Experience Prominent business-women having wise busngss
| _ experience
Dale of appointment as Director of the 3012 2005
company _ .
_ Relabion-ship between Directors inter-se | None
Mame of listed entties in which person il
also holds Cireclarship _ o
Memberstup of Committes of the Board ~ Nil
of lsted enlities
Sharehalding of non-executive Directors | 1,068,682 _
[ Inter-se relationsiug with ather Direciors 1 NIl

In case of joint holders atiending the meeting, anly such joint halder who is higher in the prder
of names recorded in the Register of Members will be entitled (o vote.

Releyant documents referred to in the accompanying notice are open by the membars for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company between 10.00 A M. to 1.00 PM. on any
working day upto the date of the Annual General Meeting and also at the meeting.

Pursuant to Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thercunder, the
companies are allowed to send communicatian to shareholders glectronically. Members
who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-
mail address for receiving all communication including Annual Reports, Notices,
Circulars, etc. from the Company electronically.

I




8.

Voling through electronic means:

Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Kule 20 of Comparies
{Management And Adminisiration) Rules, 2014 as amended. and Regulation 44 of SEBI
{Listing Cbligations and Disclosure Radquirements) regulations. 2015 the Company is
pleased o provide ‘remote e-voting’ facility through National Securities Depository Limited
{NSDL} a5 an alternative, for all members of the Company to snabls them 1o cast their voles
electranically, on the resolutions mantioned in the notice of the 35™ Annual General Meeting
{AGM) of the Compary.

The facility for voting, thraugh ballot / polling paper shall also be made available at the vanue
of the AGM. The members attending the meating, who have not slready cast thair vota
through remaote e-voting may attend the meeting, but shall not be entitied to cast their vote
again at the AGM.

The voting rights of shargholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the Paid-up Equity
Share Capital of the Company as on cut-off date i.e. 23™ September, 2016.

Mr. Sandeep Agarwal, Chartered Accountant (Membership No, (65643) has been appointad
as Scrutinizer for providing facility to the Members of the Company to scrutinize the vating
and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall submit his report, to the Chairman Director, within 48 howrs from the
conclusion of Annual Gereral Meeting. The result declared along with the Scrulinizer's
Repart shall be placed on the website of the Company www sugdhaapparels.com and shall
simultangously be communicated to the Stock Exchange.

The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:

A.  Incase a Member receives an email from NSDL [for Members whose email IDs are
registered with the CompanyiDepesitory Participants(s)]:

{i Open email and open POF file wiz; “remole e-voting pal™ with your Chent
ID or Folio No. 83 password. The said FDF file

{n Launch  internet browser by typing the following URL:
Fitps e evoting nsdl.com/{

{iii) Click on Shareholder - Login

v} Put user ID and password as intial password/PIN noted in step () above.
Click Login,

{v} Password change meny appears. Change the password/PIN with new

pasaword of your choice with minimurm 8 digits/characters or combmation
thereof. Note new password. It is strongly recommended not to shara your
password with any other person and take utmost care o keep your
password confideniial.

(vi) Home page of remote e-woting opens. Click on remote e-voting: Active
Voting Cycles.

(i) Select "EVEN" (E-Voling Event Number) of *Sudha Apparels Limiled”.

{wili} Now you are ready for remote e-veting as Cast Vote page opens.

fix} ‘oting has to be done fer each termn of the Notice separately. ln casa you
do not deswre to cast your vote on any specific item it will be treated as
abstained.

{x) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate optien and click on “Submit” and
also “Confirm™ when prompted.

{xi) Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

fxii} Once you have voled on the resalution, you will not be allowed to modify
yaour volte.

f'.Eﬁ
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Wil

{wiiiy Institutional shareholders {i.e. other than mdwviduals. HUF, NR) etc.} are
required to send scanned copy {POF/MUJPG Format) of the relevant Board
Resolution/Autharity letler etc, together with sltested specimen signalure
of the duly authcrized signatorylies) who are authorized to vote. to the
Serutinizer through e-mail to rashmico@icai.org with a copy marked to
avoting@nsdl.co.in

B. In case a Member receives physical copy of the Notice of AGM [for Members whose
email IDs are not registered with the Campany/Depository Panicipants(s)] :

{i) initial passward is provided as below/at the bottom of the attendance
Ship for the AGM:

[ EVEN {Remats e-voting USER ID PASSWORD/IPIN
~ Event Number}

{ii) Please follow all steps from Sl Mo, {ii} to SI. No. (xin) of ‘A" abave. to
cast votes,

In cas= of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Cueshons (FAQs) for
Members and remgte e-voting user manual for Members available at the downloads
seclion of www.evating. nsdl.com ar call on toll free no.: 1800-222-980.

You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the
folio which may be used for sending future communication(s).

The voting rights of Members shall be in proportian to their shares of the paid up equity
share capital of the Company as on lne cut-off date of 23rd September, 2016

Any persan, who acguires shares of tha Company and become Member of the Campany
after dispaich of the notice and holding shares a3 of the cut-off date i.e. 23rd September,
2016, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in
or Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company.

However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remete e-voting then you can use
your existing user |0 and password for casting your vote. If you fargot your password,
you can resel your password by using “Forgot User Details/Password” option available
onwww evoting.nsdl.corn of contact NSDL at the following tall free no.: 1800-222-990.

A parson, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of
Beneficial Owners maintained by the deposilories as on the cut-off date only shall be
entitled to avail the facility of remote &-voling or voting at the AGM through ballot paper.

The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on wilich
voting is to be neld, allow voling with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of “Ballot
Paper” for all those Members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes
by availing the remote g-voting facility.

The Scrutinizer shall after the cenclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count
the voles cast at the meeting and thereafier unblock the votes cast through remote e-
voting in the pragence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company
and shall make. not later than thres days of the conclusion of the AGM. a consolidated
scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a
person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the
result of the voting forlhwith.

&



IX.

The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the
website of the Company hitp./iwww sudhaapparels.com and on the website of NSDL

immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman or a person authorized by
him in wriling.

The results shall also be immediately forwarded ta the CSE Limited. Kolkata,

&\



SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

CIN: L17259WB1581PLC033331
Registered Office; 2/5, Sarat Bose Road, Sukh Sagar,
Flat No.8A, 8" Floor, Kolkata-700 020, Phone: 033-30522053
Website: http/www sudhaapparels.com. | Email. secretariali@sudhaapparels. com

PROXY FORM

(Pursuanl to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act 20M3 and Rele 19(3) of the Companies
[Management and Admimstration} Rules 2014

Mame cf Ike rmember(s):
Registersd address
E-mail IG

F,:;.“quulfnpmgnd T TRV e

IAfVe, being the member{syof .................... ... .shares of Sudha Apparels Limited, hereby appoint

) NAMB. L e
Address. . L.

Bignalur@. .. ... e e o o EEING himdher
2 Mame: . ... . ... e e
BODRESS... .

Sgnature. e w0 TaIlING FPRAREP

3 Name. ...,
Address:. .

Signature.. . .
as myfour proxy to altend and vote {on a poll) for mesus and on myfour behalf 3t the 38" Anrual General
meeling af the Gompany, 10 be held on Friday, 30" September, 2016 at 11.30 a.m. at 25, Sarat Bose Road,

Sukh Sagar, Flat Na.8A, Bth Floor, Kolkata-700 020 and al any adjcurnment thereof in respect of such
resolutions a5 are indicated below:

B 2



" Resolutions

1.

! Directars and Auditors therecn; and

i For i Againsi
Ta recaive, consider and adopt ! :
(ay the Audited Fingnoal Staterment for the inancial year i |
ended 31st March, 2016 together witn the Reporis of ‘

{b) the Audited Consclidated financial statement for the :
wear ended 315 Margh, 2016 egether with the Reports of -
Auditers thareon; :

Re-appointment of Smt. Savita Jindal who retires by
rolation i

’

Appointmenl ot Audtors and fixing ther remunerstian

*Apphcable for investors halding shares in electromig form

. Afix a
. Revenue

Signedthis ...... .Daycof.. ... .. ... .. 2016 Stamp

.. —

Signature of sharehelder

Slgﬂﬂh,ll'ﬁ'l;]f '1':.-5.7 prowy hokdar Swgnatura of second prowy hokdar Signature of third proxy hokder

‘Please put a {+ 1 in the appropriate colurmn against the resoluticn indicator in the box. Alernalively, you may
mention e no. of shares in lhe appropriale column in respect of which you would like your proxy to vole, If
yau leave all the columns blank aganst any or all the resqlulians, waur proxy wWill be entitied 10 wole in the
manner as hesshe thinks appropriate.

Notes:

m

{2)
13}

{4)

{2
{6}

This farm of proxy in order to be efleclive should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Ofice of the Company not leas than 48 hours before tha commencement of the
meeting.

A Proxy need nol be a member of the Company

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty holding in the aggregate not
more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company camying voting rights. A member heolding
more than 10% of the tolal share capital of the Company carrying voling rights may appoinl a single
person as proxy and such persan shall not act as a proxy for any ather person or sharehelder

In case the member appeiniing aroxy is a body corporate, the proxy formn should be signed under its
seal or be signed by an officer or an attorney duly authensed by it and an authenticated copy of such
authorization shoukd be altached ta the proxy form,

Appainting a proxy does nol prevent a mamber from attending the meeting in person o he 8¢ wishes.

[n the case of 1oint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joink
holders should be staled
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SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

CIN: L17293WEB1981PLCO33331
Registered Office: /5, Sarat Bose Road, Sukh Sagar,
Flat No_8A_ 8" Fioor, Kolkala-700 020. Phone; 033-30522053
Website: hitp:/iwww sudhaapparels.com. ; Email: secretarial@sudhaapparels.com

Attendance slip for the 35" Annual General Mesting

FolioMNo .. ... ... ...
[ I N I TR R

Clientld* ... ...

| hereby record my presence at the 35" Annual General Meeting of the Company on Frday, 30" September,
2016 at 11.20 AM. held at /5, Sarat Bose Road, Sukh Sagar, Flat No. 8A, 8th Floor, Kolkata- 700 020

Name of the attending Member . ...
{in Block Letters)

Mame of tha Proxy [in Block Letters) ... ... e
{to be filled in, if the proxy atlends instead ¢f the member)

Mo, ofBharasheld.................. ...

Members/Proxy's Signaturg

Note: This atlendance shp duly filled in should e handed over at the entrance of the meeling hall,

=applicable for investors holding shares in demat form.

Sy



ROUTE MAP FOR ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING VENUE






